IOWA STATE UNIVERSITY Digital Repository

Retrospective Theses and Dissertations

Iowa State University Capstones, Theses and Dissertations

1962

Theoretical analysis of chemical binding in homonuclear diatomic molecules

Rolland Ray Rue Iowa State University

Follow this and additional works at: https://lib.dr.iastate.edu/rtd Part of the <u>Physical Chemistry Commons</u>

Recommended Citation

Rue, Rolland Ray, "Theoretical analysis of chemical binding in homonuclear diatomic molecules " (1962). *Retrospective Theses and Dissertations*. 2318. https://lib.dr.iastate.edu/rtd/2318

This Dissertation is brought to you for free and open access by the Iowa State University Capstones, Theses and Dissertations at Iowa State University Digital Repository. It has been accepted for inclusion in Retrospective Theses and Dissertations by an authorized administrator of Iowa State University Digital Repository. For more information, please contact digirep@iastate.edu.



This dissertation has been 63–2996 microfilmed exactly as received

RUE, Rolland Ray, 1935-THEORETICAL ANALYSIS OF CHEMICAL BINDING IN HOMONUCLEAR DIATOMIC MOLECULES.

Iowa State University of Science and Technology Ph.D., 1962 Chemistry, physical

University Microfilms, Inc., Ann Arbor, Michigae

THEORETICAL ANALYSIS OF CHEMICAL BINDING IN HOMONUCLEAR DIATOMIC MOLECULES

by

Rolland Ray Rue

A Dissertation Submitted to the Graduate Faculty in Partial Fulfillment of The Requirements for the Degree of DOCTOR OF PHILOSOPHY

Major Subject: Physical Chemistry

Approved:

Signature was redacted for privacy.

In Charge of Major Work

Signature was redacted for privacy.

Head of Major Department

Signature was redacted for privacy.

Deam of Graduate College

Iowa State University Of Science and Technology Ames, Iowa

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION	1
SUMMARY OF THEORY	5
OUTLINE OF CALCULATIONS	19
DESCRIPTION OF MOLECULAR SYSTEMS AND WAVE FUNCTIONS	25
GROSS ENERGY BALANCE	27
ELECTRONIC DISTRIBUTION	32
PROMOTION	34
QUASI-CLASSICAL INTERACTION	39
INTERFERENCE	52
SHARING PENETRATION	66
CONCLUSIONS	71
BIBLIOGRAPHY	73
ACKNOWLEDGMENTS	75
APPENDIX: PRESENTATION OF NUMERICAL RESULTS	76

INTRODUCTION

The last decade has witnessed the emergence of the socalled <u>ab initio</u> calculations for molecules other than hydrogen¹. This somewhat weighty label refers to the fact that, by overcoming a series of mathematical difficulties (4, 5, 6, 7)and (8), it has been possible to solve the electronic Schroedinger equation of such systems by sequences of successive approximations which are completely and unambiguously characterized as regards 1) the mathematical nature of the process of solution, 2) the mathematical validity of all approximations involved, and 3) the mathematical accuracy of the resulting wave functions and energies.

This emphasis contrasts with the majority of previous approaches in which physical and chemical arguments were extensively used to postulate and substitute simple over-all results for the more complicated parts of the quantum mechanical calculations². While it might be intriguing to speculate over the psychological reasons for this shift in attitude, it cannot be denied that the advent of high-speed computers has been a <u>conditio sine qua non</u> for the success of the more mathematically oriented work. For this reason, it can be expected to

¹See, for example, papers presented at the Conference on Molecular Quantum Mechanics held at the University of Colorado in June, 1959 (1). See also the bibliographies (2) and (3).

²The indicated differences in philosophy of the two approaches are reflected in some remarks by Coulson (9).

grow in quantity as well as quality.

It would be a mistake to draw from this development the conclusion that intuitive concepts must be sacrificed. But the progress does make it likely that previously available intuitive interpretations may not have been adequate to cope with the full complexity of the problem. Starting from this premise, Ruedenberg (10) has recently suggested that a suitable analysis of the more mathematically reliable solutions may lead to an improved and more complete set of interpretative concepts which, in fact, may be closer to molecular reality. As a first step towards the implementation of such a program, he has proposed an analysis based upon a partitioning of the molecular binding energy which is derived from a partitioning of the electronic density and pairdensity.

Execution of the proposed analysis for specific molecules and, preferably, series of molecules, is required in order to assess the efficacy of the scheme. It is hoped that, at least in part, such applications will be successful in crystallizing conceptual interpretations which correctly reflect those features of the actual electronic distributions which are pertinent to the binding process. On the other hand, it is expected that they will also expose deficiencies and indicate necessary improvements in the formulation of the method.

An analysis of the hydrogen molecule ion (11) has led to the conclusion that chemical hinding is the result of a little-noticed interplay between the kinetic and potential energy

which can be formulated in terms of inter-atomic constructive interference and intra-atomic contractive promotion.

The same energetic interpretation appears in an investigation of the hydrogen molecule (10). Here it was found, moreover, that in an electron-pair bond, interference resulting from the sharing of electrons between atoms is partially offset by an increase in electron repulsion associated with electron sharing, an effect which was called sharing penetration.

An application to the water molecule (12) yielded additional information as regards the relation between destructive interference and anti-binding and non-bonded repulsions, as well as the effects of charge transfer.

The usefulness of the analysis, for the comparison within a series of similarly treated molecules, was tested (13) on a set of diatomic hydride calculations (14). In contrast to the water case, they also included the effect of contractive promotion which was found to be as important here as it had been for the hydrogen molecule and the hydrogen molecule ion. The increase in electronegativity was found to be reflected in charge transfer as well as in the interference energy, the latter accounting for the increase in binding energy.

The present investigation applies the analysis to the homonuclear diatomic systems Li_2 , Be_2 , C_2 , N_2 and F_2 . These molecules are simpler than the hydrides by the absence of

charge transfer, but more complicated in having two heavy atoms generating a more diverse variety of orbital interactions. For this reason, the members of the group show greater individualities which the analysis does, in fact, bring out. The calculations analyzed (14) are similar in kind to those for the hydrides and, in particular, also include contraction promotion. As in the case of the hydrides, the advantage of analyzing such a set of analogous wave functions was considered to outweigh the limitations inherent in the approximations.

The observations made in the preceding investigations are largely confirmed in the present study. The major complications arise from having the possibility of hybridization on both centers. Classifications and trends are found, but it may be that improvements in the sharing penetration part would clarify the analysis. The present approach shows that the wave functions for the homonuclear molecules leave much more to be desired than those for the hydrides and it pin-points hidden deficiencies in these wave functions.

In conclusion, it is felt that the present sequence of investigations, in answering some questions and raising others, indicates the merit of further efforts towards reconciling intuitive thinking with the information embodied in <u>bona</u> <u>fide</u> molecular wave functions.

SUMMARY OF THEORY

Basis of Analysis

The present summary of the analysis is given in order to facilitate the understanding of the discussion and interpretation of the results in the subsequent sections. The detailed theory of the analysis can be found in the original article by K. Ruedenberg (10). Further discussions and qualitative interpretations of the theory as well as the results obtained from the application to some molecular systems have been given in other reports (11, 12 and 13). The present investigation adds further interpretative details for discussing the results obtained from the analysis. In this summary, all formulas, definitions, and derivations are restricted to those which are pertinent to a SCF wave function for a homonuclear diatomic system. (See also the terminology used in Reference 15.)

The basis of the analysis is a partitioning of the electron-density-operator, ρ , and of the electron-pairdensityoperator, π , for the molecular system under consideration. Both ρ and π are calculable functions of the molecular wave function. Definitions, properties, and methods of calculation of ρ and π have been discussed in numerous articles (16, 17 and 18). In general, ρ and π are mathematical constructs found to be helpful in extracting useful information from complicated wave functions which are assumed to be suitably well defined. Methods for calculating ρ and π by an iteration procedure rather than by first determining the wave function have also been given (19, 20 and 21) and the results are entirely equivalent.

All physically observable quantities, including the total molecular energy, are completely determined by ρ and π . Naturally, approximate wave functions can only give approximate functions for ρ and π and thus an approximate value for any calculated quantity. In the present context we are mainly concerned with the energy effects associated with the various components of ρ and π , since our objective is the analysis of the calculated molecular binding energy. This binding energy is defined to be the difference between the computed total molecular energy and the <u>computed</u> ground state energies of the separated atoms.

In the basis of a set of atomic orbitals Aa(x), the electron density, ρ , and the electron pairdensity, π , can be represented by the expansion

$$\begin{array}{l}
\rho(\mathbf{x},\mathbf{x}') = \sum_{\mathbf{A}a,\mathbf{B}b} \rho(\mathbf{A}a,\mathbf{B}b) \quad \mathbf{A}a(\mathbf{x})\mathbf{B}b(\mathbf{x}') \\
\mathbf{A}a,\mathbf{B}b \\
\pi(\mathbf{x}_{1},\mathbf{x}_{2}) = \sum_{\mathbf{A}a,\overline{A}\overline{a}} \sum_{\mathbf{B}b,\overline{B}b} \rho(\mathbf{A}a\overline{A}\overline{a} \mid \mathbf{B}b\overline{B}\overline{b}) \quad \mathbf{A}a(\mathbf{x}_{1})\overline{A}\overline{a}(\mathbf{x}_{1})\mathbf{B}b(\mathbf{x}_{2})\overline{B}b(\mathbf{x}_{2})
\end{array}$$

The coefficient matrices, p(Aa,Bb) and $p(Aa\overline{A}\overline{a}|Bb\overline{B}\overline{b})$, are termed the bond-order matrix and the pair-bond-order matrix respectively. The total molecular energy E, which is defined by

 $E = Z_A Z_B / R + \int dV h(x) P(x, x') + \frac{1}{2} \int dV_1 \int dV_2 1 / r_{12} \pi(x_1, x_2),$ with

$$h(x) = -\frac{1}{2} \nabla^2(x) - Z_A / r_{Ax} - Z_B / r_{Bx} ; r_{Ax} = |x_A - x|$$

can therefore be expressed in the matrix form

$$E = Z_A Z_B / R + \sum_{Aa,Bb} p(Aa,Bb) [Aa|h|Bb]$$

+ $\frac{1}{2} \sum_{Aa,\overline{Aa}} \sum_{P(Aa\overline{Aa}|Bb\overline{Bb})} [Aa\overline{Aa}|Bb\overline{Bb}]$
Aa, Aa Bb, Bb

where, [Aa|h|Bb] are the one-electron energy integrals and $[AaA\bar{a}|BbB\bar{b}]$ are the electron interaction integrals.

 ρ and π are now partitioned into the various components which are specifically defined and discussed in the theoretical derivation of the analysis (10). They are

$$\begin{aligned} \rho(\mathbf{x}, \mathbf{x}^{*}) &= \rho^{QC}(\mathbf{x}, \mathbf{x}^{*}) + \rho^{I}(\mathbf{x}, \mathbf{x}^{*}) \\ \pi(\mathbf{x}_{1}, \mathbf{x}_{2}) &= \pi^{VS}(\mathbf{x}_{1}, \mathbf{x}_{2}) + \pi^{I}(\mathbf{x}_{1}, \mathbf{x}_{2}) \\ &= \pi^{PS}(\mathbf{x}_{1}, \mathbf{x}_{2}) + \pi^{SP}(\mathbf{x}_{1}, \mathbf{x}_{2}) + \pi^{I}(\mathbf{x}_{1}, \mathbf{x}_{2}) \end{aligned}$$

In the homonuclear case, the quasi-classical density (ρ^{QC}) is identical with the valence state density (ρ^{VS}) and the promoted state density (ρ^{PS}), and is expressible in terms of separate atomic contributions. The valence state pairdensity (π^{VS}) consists of a promoted state part (π^{PS}) and a sharing penetration part (π^{SP}).

From this partitioning of ρ and π , the following decomposition of the total molecular energy is obtained

$$\mathbf{F} = \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{g}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{p}} + \mathbf{F}_{B}^{\mathbf{g}} + \mathbf{F}_{B}^{\mathbf{p}} + \mathbf{F}_{AB}^{\mathbf{Q}} \end{bmatrix} + \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{S}} + \mathbf{F}_{B}^{\mathbf{S}} + \mathbf{F}_{AB}^{\mathbf{S}} \end{bmatrix} + \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{g}} + \mathbf{F}_{B}^{\mathbf{S}} + \mathbf{F}_{AB}^{\mathbf{S}} \end{bmatrix} + \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{g}} + \mathbf{F}_{B}^{\mathbf{S}} + \mathbf{F}_{AB}^{\mathbf{S}} \end{bmatrix} + \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{g}} + \mathbf{F}_{B}^{\mathbf{S}} + \mathbf{F}_{B}^{\mathbf{S}} \end{bmatrix} + \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{g}} + \mathbf{F}_{B}^{\mathbf{S}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{S}} \end{bmatrix} + \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{g}} + \mathbf{F}_{B}^{\mathbf{S}} + \mathbf{F}_{B}^{\mathbf{S}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{S}} \end{bmatrix} + \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{g}} + \mathbf{F}_{B}^{\mathbf{S}} + \mathbf{F}_{B}^{\mathbf{S}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{S}} \end{bmatrix} + \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{g}} + \mathbf{F}_{B}^{\mathbf{S}} + \mathbf{F}_{B}^{\mathbf{S}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{S}} \end{bmatrix} + \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{g}} + \mathbf{F}_{B}^{\mathbf{S}} + \mathbf{F}_{B}^{\mathbf{S}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{S}} \end{bmatrix} + \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{g}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{g}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{S}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{S}} \end{bmatrix} + \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{g}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{g}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{S}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{S}} \end{bmatrix} + \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{g}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{g}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{G}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{G}} \end{bmatrix} + \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{g}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{G}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{G}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{G}} \end{bmatrix} + \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{g}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{G}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{G}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{G}} \end{bmatrix} + \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{G}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{G}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{G}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{G}} \end{bmatrix} + \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{G}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{G}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{G}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{G}} \end{bmatrix} + \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{G}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{G}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{G}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{G}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{G}} \end{bmatrix} + \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{G}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{G}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{G}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{G}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{G}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{G}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{G}} \end{bmatrix} + \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{G}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{G}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{G}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{G}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{G}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{G}} \end{bmatrix} + \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{G}} + \mathbf{F}_{A}^{\mathbf{G$$

The energy terms in the first bracket are obtained from ρ^{PS} and π^{PS} . They include the ground state energies of the atoms (\mathbf{E}_{A}^{g} and \mathbf{E}_{B}^{g}), the promotion energy effects (\mathbf{E}_{A}^{P} and \mathbf{E}_{B}^{P}), and the quasi-classical interaction energy between the two atoms when in their promoted states (\mathbf{E}_{AB}^{QC}). The remaining terms arise from the sharing of electrons between the atoms A and B. The energy terms in the second bracket are obtained from π^{SP} . They include the intra-atomic sharing penetration energies (\mathbf{E}_{AB}^{SP}) and the inter-atomic sharing penetration energy (\mathbf{E}_{AB}^{SP}). The last term (\mathbf{E}_{AB}^{I}) is the interference energy which is obtained from ρ^{I} and π^{I} . For a homonuclear diatomic molecule, all intra-atomic terms are identical for the two atoms A and B. From the preceding equation results the following decomposition for the molecular binding energy

 $\Delta E = E - 2E_A^g = E^P + E^{QC} + E^{SP} + E^I$ with $E^P = 2E_A^P$ $E^{QC} = E_{AB}^{QC}$

$$E^{SP} = 2E_A^{SP} + E_{AB}^{SP}$$
$$E^{I} = E_{AB}^{I}$$

Promotion Energy

Since the detailed breakdown of the promotion energy was left open in the original exposition, we give here the specific method adopted in the present analysis for this purpose.

Because it is of interest to compare atomic promotion effects occurring in different molecules, it appears desirable to carry out the interpretative partitioning of the promotion energy in terms of orthogonal spherical atomic orbitals, i.e., in the present case, orthogonalized Slater-type orbitals. On the other hand, the promotion state density and pairdensity, as extracted from the molecule, are expressed in terms of valence atomic orbitals, i.e., certain hybrid orbitals which are determined by the requirement that the promotion state density matrix have a diagonal intra-atomic structure. It is therefore necessary to transform the promotion state matrices into the basis of spherical orbitals and, thereby, the density matrix acquires off-diagonal terms. Hence, promotion state density and pairdensity are of the form

$$\rho^{P}(\mathbf{x},\mathbf{x'}) = \sum_{a,\bar{a}}^{P} (Aa,A\bar{a}) Aa(\mathbf{x}) A\bar{a}(\mathbf{x'})$$

$$\pi^{P}(1,2) = \sum_{a,\bar{a}}^{P} \sum_{b,\bar{b}}^{P} (AaA\bar{a} | AbA\bar{b}) Aa(1) A\bar{a}(1) Ab(2) A\bar{b}(2)$$

The ground state comes naturally expressed in terms of the spherical atomic orbitals, viz.,

$$\rho^{g}(\mathbf{x},\mathbf{x}') = \sum_{\mathbf{a},\overline{\mathbf{a}}} p^{g}(A\mathbf{a},A\overline{\mathbf{a}}) A_{\mathbf{a}}^{g}(\mathbf{x}) A_{\overline{\mathbf{a}}}^{\overline{\mathbf{a}}}(\mathbf{x}')$$

$$\pi^{g}(1,2) = \sum_{\mathbf{a},\overline{\mathbf{a}}} \sum_{\mathbf{b},\overline{\mathbf{b}}} p^{g}(A\mathbf{a}A\overline{\mathbf{a}} | AbA\overline{\mathbf{b}}) A_{\mathbf{a}}^{g}(1) A_{\overline{\mathbf{a}}}^{g}(1) A_{\overline{\mathbf{b}}}^{g}(2) A_{\overline{\mathbf{b}}}^{g}(2).$$

Promotion, i.e., the passage from ρ^{g} , π^{g} to ρ^{P} , π^{P} consists of two changes: first, the change in the coefficients from $p^{g}(Aa, A\overline{a})$, $p^{g}(AaA\overline{a} | AbA\overline{b})$ to $p^{P}(Aa, A\overline{a})$, $p^{P}(AaA\overline{a} | AbA\overline{b})$ and second, the change in the spherical atomic orbitals from $A_{a}^{g}(x)$ to Aa(x) because the orbital exponents change from ζ^g to ζ^P . Consequently, the promotion energy is divided into two parts. The first corresponds to the change in the coefficients p, while leaving the orbital exponents at their ground state values, and this is called hybridization promotion. The second corresponds to the changes in the orbital exponents ζ , while leaving the coefficients in their promotion state values p^{P} . It is called contraction promotion, expansion being considered as a negative contraction. The hybridization promotion energy (E^{PRH}) and the contraction promotion energy (E^{PRC}) are defined by the following equations:

and

$$\begin{split} \mathbf{E}_{A}^{PRC} &= \sum_{a,\bar{a}} \mathbf{p}^{P}(Aa, A\bar{a}) \quad \delta\left[Aa \left| \mathbf{h}_{A} \right| A\bar{a}\right] \\ &+ \sum_{a,\bar{a}} \sum_{b,\bar{b}} \mathbf{p}^{P}(AaA\bar{a} \left| AbA\bar{b} \right) \quad \delta\left[AaA\bar{a} \right| AbA\bar{b}\right] \\ \text{with} \quad \delta\left[Aa \left| \mathbf{h}_{A} \right| A\bar{a}\right] &= \left[A^{P}_{A} \left| \mathbf{h}_{A} \right| A\bar{a}\right] - \left[A^{g}_{a} \left| \mathbf{h}_{A} \right| A\bar{a}\right] \\ &\delta\left[AaA\bar{a} \left| AbA\bar{b} \right] = \left[A^{P}_{A} \left| \mathbf{h}_{A} \right| A\bar{a}\right] - \left[A^{g}_{a} \left| \mathbf{h}_{A} \right| A\bar{a}\right] \\ &\delta\left[AaA\bar{a} \left| AbA\bar{b} \right] = \left[A^{P}_{A} \left| AbA\bar{b} \right] - \left[A^{g}_{a} A\bar{a} \right| AbA\bar{b}\right] \\ \text{where} \qquad \left[f \left| g\right] = \int dV_{1} \left(dV_{2} f(1)g(2)/r_{12}\right) \end{split}$$

There remains the problem of apportioning the promotion energy to the individual orbitals. Such a prorating is necessarily arbitrary but, if carried out with reason, it can nevertheless be instructive.

The first step is the reduction of the quadruple electronic interaction sum to a double sum. This was achieved according to the formulas:

$$\sum_{a,b} \sum_{\overline{a},\overline{b}} \delta_{p}(AaAb | A\overline{a}A\overline{b}) [AaAb | A\overline{a}A\overline{b}] = \sum_{a,\overline{a}} \epsilon^{PRH}(Aa,A\overline{a})$$
with $\epsilon^{PRH}(Aa,A\overline{a}) = \sum_{b,\overline{b}} \delta_{p}(AaAb | A\overline{a}A\overline{b}) [AaAb | A\overline{a}A\overline{b}]$.

The second step consists in apportioning the orbital pair contributions to the individual orbitals. This was done differently for the electron interaction terms than for the first-order terms. For the hybridization promotion, the following prorating was used:

$$E_{\Lambda}^{PRH} = \sum_{a} E^{PRH}$$
 (Aa)

where

$$E^{PRH}(Aa) = \sum_{\overline{a}} \left[\frac{2 \, \delta p(Aa, Aa)}{\delta p(Aa, Aa) + \delta p(A\overline{a}, A\overline{a})} \right] \delta p(Aa, A\overline{a}) \left[Aa \middle| h_A \middle| A\overline{a} \right]$$

+
$$\sum_{\bar{a}} \left[\frac{2 \int p(Aa,Aa) p_m(A\bar{a})}{\int p(Aa,Aa) p_m(A\bar{a}) + \int p(A\bar{a},A\bar{a}) p_m(Aa)} \right] \in PRH(Aa,A\bar{a})$$

 $2 p_m(Aa) = p^P(Aa,Aa) + p^g(Aa,Aa).$ with

For the contraction promotion, the following prorating was used:

$$E_{A}^{PRC} = \sum_{a} E^{PRC}(Aa)$$

where

where

$$E^{PRC}(Aa) = \sum_{\bar{a}} \left[\frac{2 \int [Aa | h_A | Aa]}{\int [Aa | h_A | Aa]} + \int [A\bar{a} | h_A | A\bar{a}] \right] p^{P}(Aa, A\bar{a}) \int [Aa | h_A | A\bar{a}]$$

$$+ \sum_{\bar{a}} \left[\frac{2 \int (NA; Aa) (NA; A\bar{a})_{m}}{\int (NA; Aa) (NA; A\bar{a})_{m}} + \int (NA; A\bar{a}) (NA; A\bar{a})_{m} \right] \in PRC(Aa, A\bar{a})$$

with

$$\mathcal{S}(NA;Aa) = \left[Aa^{P}|1/r_{A}|Aa^{P}\right] - \left[Aa^{g}|1/r_{A}|Aa^{g}\right]$$

and

$$2(NA;Aa)_{m} = \left[Aa | 1/r_{A}| Aa\right] + \left[Aa | 1/r_{A}| Aa\right].$$

Quasi-classical Interactions

The quasi-classical energy terms are the purely electrostatic coulombic interactions between the two atoms A and B. That is, they are interactions between charge distributions where one also considers the nuclei as point charge distributions. This includes the nuclear repulsion, the attraction of the quasi-classical electronic charge on B to the nucleus A, the attraction of the quasi-classical electronic charge on A to the nucleus B, and the repulsive interaction of these two electronic charge clouds. There are no charge transfer terms involved in the homonuclear diatomic systems.

In terms of the VAO's, Aa, the quasi-classical density is expressed as

$$\rho^{QC} = \sum_{A} \rho(A) = \sum_{Aa} q(Aa) Aa^{2},$$

where $\rho(A)$ is the quasi-classical density attributable to atom A and q(Aa), the orbital population, is the amount of electronic charge contained in the charge distribution represented by Aa². The expressions for the quasi-classical energy terms now follow directly from the density formalism presented earlier. The attraction of the electronic charge on B to the nucleus A is given by:

$$\int (-Z_A/r_A) \rho(B) dV = \int (-Z_A/r_A) \left[\sum_{Bb} q(Bb) Bb^2 \right] dV$$
$$= \sum_{Bb} q(Bb) \left[Bb \left| -Z_A/r_A \right| Bb \right] .$$

Likewise, the attraction of the electronic charge on A to the nucleus B is given by:

$$\int (-Z_{\rm B}/r_{\rm B}) \rho(A) dV = \sum_{Aa} q(Aa) \left[Aa - Z_{\rm B}/r_{\rm B}\right] Aa$$

The interaction of the electronic charge on A with the one on B is given by:

$$\int dV_1 \int dV_2 (1/r_{12}) \rho(A) \rho(B) = \sum_{Aa} \sum_{Bb} q(Aa)q(Bb) \left[Aa^2 | Bb^2\right].$$

The total quasi-classical energy contribution to the binding energy of the molecule is thus given by:

$$E^{QC} = Z_A Z_B / R + \sum_{Bb} q(Bb) \left[Bb \left| -Z_A / r_A \right| Bb \right] + \sum_{Aa} q(Aa) \left[Aa \left| -Z_B / r_B \right| Aa \right] + \sum_{Aa} \sum_{Bb} q(Aa) q(Bb) \left[Aa^2 \right| Bb^2 \right] .$$

The total quasi-classical energy is now divided into orbital pair contributions, $(Aa,Bb)^{QC}$. E^{QC} , which is usually quite small and negative, is the sum of relatively large contributions of opposite sign. That is, the nuclear repulsion (and the smaller electronic repulsion) is balanced off by the nuclear attraction terms. It seems desirable that the orbital pair contributions should exhibit this same effect. This is achieved by dividing the large nuclear repulsion term into orbital pair contributions. These contributions, furthermore, are of about the same magnitude as the corresponding electronnuclear attraction contribution. Thus, we define

$$Z(Aa) = q^{P}(Aa) = q(Aa)$$

as that part of the nuclear charge Z_A on nucleus A which is to be associated with orbital Aa. Upon introducing this partitioning of the nuclear charge Z_A , one obtains:

$$E^{QC} = \sum_{Aa} \sum_{Bb} (Aa, Bb)^{QC} ; (A \neq B) ,$$

where the pair contributions are defined by:

$$(Aa,Bb)^{QC} = q(Aa)q(Bb)/Z_A Z_B \left\{ Z_A Z_B/R + Z_B \left[Bb \right| - Z_A/r_A \right| Bb \right]$$

+ $Z_A \left[Aa \left| - Z_B/r_B \right| Aa \right] + Z_A Z_B \left[Aa^2 \right| Bb^2 \right] \right\}$.

The orbital pair contributions, $(Aa,Bb)^{QC}$, are called shielded nuclear attraction (SNA) energy terms. (Note that in this usage of the term, we have included nuclear repulsions.)

In order to facilitate the discussion of the orbital pair contributions in the various molecular systems, it is convenient to express (Aa,Bb)^{QC} in the form:

 $(Aa,Bb)^{QC} = q(Aa)q(Bb) \left\{ \frac{1}{R} + \left[\frac{Bb}{-1} \right] + \left[Aa - \frac{1}{r_B} \right] Aa + \left[Aa^2 \left| \frac{Bb^2}{-1} \right] \right\}.$

The expression in the curly brackets represents the quasiclassical interaction between two unit nuclear point charges at an internuclear distance of R and two unit electronic charge clouds represented by the charge distributions, Aa^2 and Bb^2 . The orbital populations act simply as proportionality factors as far as the interpretation of the results are concerned. The expression in the bracket is called the normalized quasi-classical energy between the orbitals (Aa) and (Bb).

Sharing Interference Interactions

The interference energy terms arise because, as a conseouence of electron sharing. the actual density $\rho(x)$ differs from the quasi-classical density $\rho^{QC}(x)$ by the inter-atomic interference density $\rho^{I}(x)$. The latter can be decomposed into orbital pair contributions as follows:

$$I(\mathbf{x}) = \sum_{Aa} \sum_{Bb} p(Aa, Bb) \{Aa(\mathbf{x}) Bb(\mathbf{x}) - \frac{1}{2} S(Aa, Bb) [Aa^{2}(\mathbf{x}) + Bb^{2}(\mathbf{x})] \}$$

where the p(Aa,Bb) are the aforementioned bond-orders. Each orbital pair contribution represents a <u>shift</u> of electronic charge from one part of the molecule to another. The basic shifts are from the atoms into the bond region or vice versa. But in the sequel, more intricate redistributions will be found. For the pairdensity a similar interference effect exists.

Similar to the quasi-classical interactions, the sharing interference can therefore be written as a sum of orbital pair contributions:

$$E^{I} = \sum_{Aa Bb} \sum_{Aa,Bb} (Aa,Bb)^{I} ; (A \neq B) ,$$

and each pair consists of a kinetic and a potential part. The kinetic interference energy arises since addition of the interference density ρ^{I} to ρ^{QC} modifies the gradient of the electronic distribution. The potential part can again be subdivided into two parts. The major term describes the interaction between the density term ρ^{I} and the two shielded nuclei, i.e., the attraction by the two nuclei and the repulsion by the respective shielding electrons. The minor part arises Irom additional other electronic interactions. If the bond-order p(Aa,Bb) is non-vanishing, the orbital pair contribution can be written as the product,

 $(Aa,Bb)^{I} = p(Aa,Bb) \langle Aa,Bb \rangle$, where $\langle Aa,Bb \rangle$ is the resonance integral between the two orbitals. It represents the interference energy between the two orbitals for unit bond-order. If the bond-order vanishes, the interference energy has no kinetic part and the potential parts are both relatively small.

Sharing Penetration Interactions

The sharing penetration energies arise from the exchange part of the pairdensity and hence contain only electronic interaction terms. They describe the changes in the electronic interaction resulting from the fact that, in the molecule, the electrons are shared between the atoms.

Electron sharing materially changes the probability of finding two electrons on the same atom, as well as the probability of finding simultaneously one electron on A and the other on B. The latter change is essentially described by the inter-atomic sharing penetration pairdensity,

$$\pi_{AB}^{SP} = \sum_{a,b} q^{S}(Aa,Bb) Aa^{2}(x_{1}) Bb^{2}(x_{2});$$

the former by the intra-atomic sharing penetration pairdensity,

$$\pi_{A}^{SP} \stackrel{*}{=} \sum_{a,\overline{a}} q^{S}(Aa, A\overline{a}) Aa^{2}(x_{1}) A\overline{a}^{2}(x_{2}).$$

In these formulas, the

$$q^{S}(Aa,Bb) = -q_{x}(Aa,Bb),$$

are the negative inter-atomic exchange pairpopulations derived from

$$\pi_{\mathbf{x}}(\mathbf{x}_{1},\mathbf{x}_{2}) = \rho(\mathbf{x}_{1})\rho(\mathbf{x}_{2}) - \pi(\mathbf{x}_{1},\mathbf{x}_{2}).$$

The intra-atomic coefficients are derived from these interatomic coefficients by:

$$q^{S}(Aa,A\overline{a}) = q^{S}(Aa)q^{S}(A\overline{a}) / \sum_{\overline{a}} q^{S}(A\overline{a})$$

with

$$q^{S}(Aa) = \sum_{b} q_{x}(Aa, Bb), (B \neq A).$$

Actually, $\pi^{SP}_{AB} \text{ as well as } \pi^{SP}_A \text{ contain additional smaller terms.}$

In view of the foregoing, the corresponding electronic interaction energies, i.e., the sharing penetration energies, can be decomposed by orbital pairs:

$$E_{AB}^{SP} = \int dV_1 \int dV_2 \ 1/r_{12} \ \pi_{AB}^{SP} = \sum_{a,b} (Aa,Bb)^{SP}, \ (A \neq B);$$
$$E_{A}^{SP} = \frac{1}{2} \int dV_1 \int dV_2 \ 1/r_{12} \ \pi_{A}^{SP} = \sum_{a,\bar{a}} (Aa,A\bar{a})^{SP}.$$

If the intra-atomic cross terms (a $\neq \overline{a}$) are attributed equally to both partners, one obtains the decomposition into orbitals:

$$E_{A}^{SP} = \sum_{a} (Aa)^{SP}$$

with

$$(Aa)^{ST} = \overline{\underline{\lambda}} (Aa, A\overline{a})^{\overline{ST}}.$$

OUTLINE OF CALCULATIONS

General Remarks

The starting data for the analyses were the wave functions described above which were obtained from Dr. B. J. Ransil at Chicago. This data was given in the form of the coefficients which determined the occupied MO's as LCAO-MO's and all of the corresponding one- and two-center, one- and twoelectron integrals. These integrals included all of the overlap, kinetic, nuclear attraction, and electron interaction integrals. All data was obtained in terms of the nonorthogonal STO basis set of atomic orbitals and atomic units (a.u.) were used throughout¹.

All arithmetical calculations and manipulations used in the analysis were done on the Cyclone computer. This computer is a high-speed digital computer with a random-access static core memory and paper tape input-output. It was built by the Electrical Engineering department at ISU and is a modified version of the Illiac at the University of Illinois. The programing of the analysis was done in basic machine language and was generalized for any diatomic molecule, including the het-Most of the arithmetical operations used in eronuclear cases.

¹The a.u. are: length, 1 a.u. = 0.5293A energy, 1 a.u. = 1 Hartree = 27.2052eV Atomic units were used throughout the analysis except for the reporting of the final results. The energy decomposition presented by the figures and tables contained in this report are in units of eV's unless specifically noted as being otherwise.

the analysis were standard matrix operations and much of the programing consisted of writing subroutines for these operations.

Because of limited memory capacity of the computer, all matrix manipulations were executed with the submatrices rather than with the total matrices. This also allowed one to take advantage of the symmetry properties of these matrices. As a means of checking for computational errors, the total molecular electronic energy was recalculated after each major step in the analysis. Although not foolproof, it is believed that all computational errors have been detected and corrected by this procedure. One reason for believing so is the high consistency in the numerical accuracy of the results which was maintained throughout the analysis. Another is the highly improbable occurrence of two or more simultaneous errors which would tend to exactly cancel themselves.

Transformation to Valence Atomic Orbitals

The first step in the analysis was the calculation of the bond-order matrix, p(Aa,Bb), and the pair-bond-order matrix, $p(AaAa \mid BbBb)$, for which the definitions have been given in an earlier report (10). These matrices, calculated in terms of the nonorthogonal atomic orbital basis set, and the corresponding energy integral matrices were then transformed into an orthogonal atomic orbital set. after the transformation matrix had been determined by Schmidt's orthogonalization pro-

cedure.

The next step involved the calculation of a basis set of hybrid "valence atomic orbitals, VAO". These were determined by locally diagonalizing the intra-atomic submatrices of the bond-order matrix (10). The eigenvectors thus obtained were used to construct a second orthogonal transformation matrix which was used for transforming all matrices into this new basis set of VAO's. It was in terms of these VAO's that the partitioning of the densities (and molecular energy) was performed. Only the promotion effects, which are reported in terms of the orthogonal STO basis set, do not involve the VAO's.

Partitioning into Interference Terms and Interference-Free Terms

The separation of the interference effects was the next step in the analysis and the first step in the actual partitioning of the densities and the corresponding energies. It involved the calculation of the interference energy integrals and new coefficient matrices, as well as the corresponding interference energy terms. Also obtained at this time were the "orbital population numbers", q(Aa), which correspond to Mulliken's "gross atomic populations", and the division of q(Aa) into a valence-inactive part, p(Aa), and a valenceactive part, v(Aa). At this stage of the analysis, the firstand second-order densities (and corresponding energies) have

been divided into an interference part and an interference free ("valence state") part.

Sharing Penetration and Quasi-classical Terms After the isolation of the interference effects, the sharing penetration effects were next separated out according to the formulas prescribed in the theoretical derivation of the analysis (10). Since sharing penetration involves only the electron-pairdensity, this corresponds to the separation of the valence state pairdensity into a sharing penetration part and a promoted state part. For the first-order density, the promoted state is equivalent to the valence state and no distinction exists between the two. The calculation of the sharing penetration effects was accomplished by calculating new coefficient matrices, i.e., by separating the valence state pairdensity coefficient matrix into the two parts mentioned. Following this, the quasi-classical energy effect arising from the interactions between the atoms in their promoted state densities was calculated. This, as well as all of the other energy effects mentioned previously, was calculated in terms of orbital pair contributions which, when summed together, give the total.

Promotional Terms

The next step in the analysis was the calculation of the promotion effects, i.e., the energy effects appeciated with

the differences between the ground state and the promoted state densities of the separated atoms. The ground state densities and energies of the atoms were first calculated as well as the promoted state energies. In the SAO cases, the Slater orbital exponents were also used in the ground state wave functions. In the BAO and BMAO cases, the ground state wave functions were assumed to have the BAO orbital exponents. since they give the lowest ground state energies. The only promotion effect in the SAO and BAO calculations is that due to the hybridization of the orbitals, i.e., "hybridization promotion". It is calculated as the difference between the ground state and promoted state energies in these cases. In the BMAO calculations, there are, in addition to hybridization promotion, promotion effects arising from the changes in the orbital exponents, i.e., "contractive promotion". They result from the differences in the energy integrals used in calculating the ground and promoted state energies.

Preparation of Tables

The final step of the analysis was the accumulation and sorting of the final energetic results in a more suitable tabular form similar to that used in the figures contained in this report. At this time the results were also converted into the units of electron volts, eV. All of the final and intermediate results of the analysis have been punched out on paper tape and most of them have also been printed. Some

plots of the interference densities were made and were found to be quite useful in the interpretation and understanding of the interference energy effects. Figures which show the overall general trends of the various energy components in the different molecules and for the different approximations were also made.

DESCRIPTION OF MOLECULAR SYSTEMS AND WAVE FUNCTIONS

The molecular systems analysed are the homonuclear diatomic molecules, Li_2 , Be_2 , C_2 , N_2 and F_2 . All of the molecular ground state wave functions, as well as the corresponding integrals needed for computing the molecular energy, for these systems were obtained from Dr. B. J. Ransil at the Laboratory of Molecular Structure and Spectra, University of Chicago, Chicago, Illinois (14). This data formed the starting point for the present investigation. The wave functions were calculated as a single-determinant limited SCF LCAO-MO approximation to the accurate ground state wave functions, based on a minimal set of Slater AO's. The terminology used here follows that of Mulliken (15) and Ransil (14). That is, on both atoms there were used at most the 1S, 2S, 2PC, 2PT and 2PT orbitals.

For each molecular system, three different wave functions were computed which differed only in the manner in which the orbital exponents of the basis atomic orbitals are determined (14). In the first case, the ζ 's are determined by Slater's rules ("Slater orbitals"). This wave function and the analysis associated with it will be referred to as the "SAO case". In the second case, the ζ 's are determined by minimizing the separate atomic ground state energies ("best atom atomic orbitals (BAO)"). This case will be referred to as the "BAO case". In the third case, the ζ 's are determined by minimiz-

ing the total molecular energy ("best molecular orbital atomic orbitals (BMAO)"). This case will be referred to as the "BMAO case". Thus, three analyses are carried out for each molecular system, and the results are given in the appendix. Since it was found, however, that in general there is little difference between the SAO and the BAO cases, the discussion will be concerned mainly with the SAO and the BMAO cases.

The calculations for each molecule were not made at the theoretically determined equilibrium distance, but at the experimentally observed equilibrium internuclear distance. In the unknown Be_2 , this distance was chosen arbitrarily. Consequently, the results obtained do not satisfy the virial theorem. In all cases, the absolute error in the total molecular energy was greater than the computed dissociation energy. In spite of these limitations, it is believed that the following discussion will exhibit some significant physical aspects of chemical binding in these molecular systems and will allow a certain amount of comparison between them.

GROSS ENERGY BALANCE

The basis for the analysis is a decomposition of the molecular binding energy into four parts ascribed to promotional, quasi-classical, sharing penetration and sharing interference interactions. Each of these parts is further examined according to intra- and inter-atomic contributions from orbitals and orbital pairs and also according to their energetic origin, i.e., kinetic, nuclear-electronic or inter-electronic. This complete breakdown is given in the appendix for all molecular calculations. Thus, there are three analyses for each molecule corresponding to the SAO, BAO and EMAO approximations.

Before discussing these molecular analyses in detail, it is of interest to consider the over-all behavior of the four basic interactions mentioned above. A comparative graphical representation is given in Figure 1, which information is extracted from the first table of each of the analyses in the appendix. Since the BAO results closely parallel the SAO results, they are omitted from the plot. Each curve represents a running total.

The curves show a satisfying similarity to each other and to similar plots obtained in the previous investigations (11, 12 and 13). In spite of this apparent similarity, a profound difference exists, however, between the systems Li_2 , N_2 and F_2 on one hand and Be₂ and C₂ on the other hand. For this



Figure 1. Theoretical molecular binding energy decomposition

.

reason these groups are distinguished in the figure. The former group has an odd number of electrons per atom while the latter has an even number. The experimental molecular ground state is a singlet for the members of the former group, a triplet for C₂ and unobserved for Be₂ (if existing, a triplet would be expected). The present singlet wave functions for the latter two molecules must be regarded with caution. It is not clear whether, or how close, they approach an actual physical situation. The theoretically predicted equilibrium distance may be far from that used for C_2 and it may be non-existent for Be2. Note also that binding is not obtained for either of them. It is rather surprising that the Be_2 and C_2 plots in Figure 1 do conform to the general pattern, since the detailed examination will indeed reveal considerable peculiarities in their wave functions.

In each curve, the first two points correspond to the combined promotion effects of the atoms. Hybridization promotion is labelled H and contraction promotion is labelled C. The former is quite large in C_2 and N_2 and small in Li₂, Be₂, and F_2 . The explanation of these values are given in a subsequent section. In all cases, the contraction promotion appears to be very small but it is consistently the result of a considerable drop in potential energy and a compensating increase in kinetic energy indicating an average contraction in agreement with previous conclusions (11, 12 and 13).

The next point on the curve represents the quasi-classical interactions, i.e., the electrostatic potential energy arising when the atomic charge clouds, including the nuclei, are moved from infinity to their equilibrium positions. In all cases it is attractive and less than 5 eV.

The last three points describe the energy contributions from electron sharing. The first two show the characteristic increase in electron repulsion due to sharing penetration. The positive intra-atomic contributions (first point) always outweigh the negative inter-atomic contribution (second point). The final point furnishes the energy effects arising from the interference between the orbitals of the two atoms. According to all previous experience, this interaction is the crucial element in chemical binding. In the present study, two types of anomalous behavior are found. First, the aforementioned peculiarity of the Be, and C, molecules finds expression in the fact that the kinetic part of the interference energy is positive and the potential part is larger and negative, in complete contradiction to all other cases so far analyzed. In view of the uncertainty connected with these wave functions, it is difficult to assess the meaning of this as well as the other aberrations in Be₂ and C_2 . Second, the present Li₂ calculations yield the unique examples of a positive total interference effect, although the signs of the hinetic and potential parts show normal behavior. The meaning

of this deviation is also uncertain since the violation of the virial theorem appears to indicate that the calculation has been performed at a distance markedly shorter than the theoretically predicted equilibrium position.

ELECTRONIC DISTRIBUTION

The five molecules studied separate into two categories with quite different characteristics. The first group is formed by Li_2 , N_2 and F_2 , where each atom contributes an odd number of electrons to the MO's. The second group, Be₂ and C₂, is characterized by each atom contributing an even number of \mathcal{O} electrons.

Within the first group, there is a notable difference in the composition of the bonding and lone-pair valence hybrids depending upon the occupation of the lone-pair orbital. Exactly the same observation was made and explained in the study of the hydride molecules. For Li2, with no lone-pair electrons, the bonding orbital is predominantly 2S and the lonepair is predominantly 2PC. The actual weighting of the 2S contribution to the bonding orbital is smaller in LiH (60%) than it is in Li₂ (94%), but the latter fraction may not be too reliable because there is some question with regard to the present Li_2 calculation since it has not been executed at the theoretically determined equilibrium distance. This leads to a rather large relative deviation from the virial theorem and also is suspected of producing unreasonable interference en-In N_2 and F_2 , the lone-pair orbital is doubly ergy values. occupied and therefore preempts the available 2S orbital so that the dominant part of the bonding orbital becomes 2PC. In this respect, the N_2 molecule differs from the particular
state of the NH molecule treated in the hydride series. Rather, the σ valence orbitals in N₂ are similar in character to those of the boron atom found in the BH calculation. For both cases, the 2P σ character of the bonding orbital is about 83%. The 2S character is 17% in BH and 16% in N₂. The σ valence orbitals in F₂ are very similar to those in HF, about 90% 2P σ character in the bonding orbital. (In HF it is 88%.)

The systems of the second group, Be_2 and C_2 , have doubly filled 20 and 20 MO's. Since S-P hybridization appears to be too costly, both MO's have only a minor 2PO admixture. If this mixture were zero, then one would have the situation of two doubly filled lone-pair orbitals with non-bonded repulsions. Actually, the lone-pair valence orbital, possessing more than 96% 2S character, is found to have the approximate population of 1.7 whereas the bonding orbital, with more than 98% 2PO character, is populated by approximately 0.3 to 0.4 electrons. The exact values are given in Table 1.

••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	S	 AO	BMAO				
Orbital	Be ₂	с ₂	Be ₂	C ₂			
b	0,323	0.411	0.253	0.323			
1	1.686	1.586	1.761	1.699			

Table 1. Populations of lone-pair orbital and bonding orbital in Be_2 and C_2

PROMOTION

Hybridization

In order to find the effect of hybridization promotion, suitable ground state wave functions must be chosen.

For lithium, this function is the determinant for the $(1S^22S)$ ²S configuration. Promotion therefore consists in changing the 2S orbital into a bonding hybrid involving a shift of charge of about 0.05 electron from the 2S to the 2PO orbital.

The nitrogen ground state is a $(1S^22S^22PT2PT2PT)^{4S}$ determinant. The fluorine ground state is a $(1S^22S^22PT2PT^2)^{2PTT^2}$ $2PTT^2)^{2P}$ determinant. In both of these, promotion consists in adulterating the 2S lone-pair by some 2PT admixture and transforming the singly occupied 2PT orbital into a bonding hybrid by adding some 2S character. The net effect is the loss of 2S and the gain of 2PT character by one electron. Thus, in nitrogen, with the aforementioned strong hybridization, there is a considerable charge shift (0.20 electrons in the SAO approximation, 0.13 electrons in the BMAO approximation) from the 2S to the 2PT orbitals. In fluorine, the charge shift is only 0.03 electrons because of the minute hybridization.

The ground state of beryllium is the $(1S^22S^2)$ ¹S determinant. For carbon it is a $(1S^22S^22P\pi 2P\pi)$ ³P determinant. In both cases, promotion consists in removing part of an electron from the 2S (which essentially remains a lone-pair orbital) and placing this charge into the 2PC orbital, the bonding orbital. The amounts of charge shifted are identical with those given in Figure 2.

The promotion energies resulting from these hybridizations in the SAO and BMAO approximations are summarized, by orbitals, in the first two sections of Figure 2. Also included, as the first column for each atom, are the corresponding population changes (Δp) which have just been discussed. They are the changes of the diagonal elements of the bondorder matrix. While it is true that the listed energy values also contain contributions from off-diagonal elements, especially from electronic interaction, these are generally minor. Only in Be₂ and C₂ do the 1S-2S cross terms gain some influence on the total.

In all cases, removal of charge from an orbital decreases the kinetic and increases the potential energy of that orbital. Addition of charge generates opposite changes. Nearly always the change in potential energy dominates. In view of the foregoing, the over-all energy increase due to hybridization, is basically due to the decrease in nuclear attraction in moving charge from the 2S to the 2PC orbital. In Li_2 and N_2 , this effect also dominates over the not negligible drop in energy associated with the slight charge shift into the 1S orbital. Since the present definition of promotion densities is

	-	A: At' EIN POL 101	1 11 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		to the state of the state of the	10 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10		e south of the second		Call 12 21 Collins for the	1 1 1 1 1	(4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (5)	and the state of t		the state of the state of the state	erent to the second second	The second se						
-	<u>.</u>	101 101 MM 101	SHIT THE BEEL THE	all the state of the state of the	्राहरू करू को में कि क		01 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 -	van en ginz word e	1 2 1 4 1 4 2 1 4 1 4 2 1 4 1 4 2 1 4 1 4	1. 244 1. 1. 1. 2.7 allo		1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	ि कि कि रेजर के कि	and the all and	and the second s		The Let will			to of the the		1977 - 1978 - 1979 - 1979 - 1979 - 1979 - 1979 - 1979 - 1979 - 1979 - 1979 - 1979 - 1979 - 1979 - 1979 - 1979 -	
ot OF PPOMOLION ENERGIES	+	2. 2: ER POT 101	Zo o To o Shore carbo o	the set of the set			5 I 01 7 2 9	Zio Ing Ing Budger	areas 2 in 4 m 1 v.	nows 21 238 over		6 %0 2 03 1 C	to be a la service of the second	0.044 5.45 5.01 0.14		ante des des autores	का सम्बद्धा स						
	÷	101 101 204 .V.A		1. 2.11. 11. 2. 22. 11. 28. 11. 28.	LAND LOD. LOD.			1 and 1 2 a fix		in the second			 and the second second				cran třáh 1 G	11 - 11 - 11 - 11 - 11 - 11 - 11 - 11			10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 1		
-	_	A A' EA POT TOU		weeks a 24 weeks to be	et et itt ta set a sette a				we then the second s	south the state of the				En and the average Equipants									
-	_		-					2	201 - D	-	* *.	111	 					 	2	-	I		

Summary of orbital promotion energy decompositions Figure 2.

Please Note: Type on several pages small and indistinct. Filmed as received. University Microfilms, Inc. not derived from atomic wave functions, the 1S population can increase beyond two, a fact which accounts for the slightly negative promotion energy in the SAO calculation of Li_2 . In Be_2 and C_2 , the 1S promotion has the opposite sign and, in the BMAO case, is quite substantial.

Contraction and Expansion

The third section of Figure 2 gives the promotion energies arising from the contraction and expansion of the AO's in the BMAO calculation, with reference to the BAO calculation. The energy differences are the results of the changes in the various orbital exponents calculated for the hybridized promotion state. The orbital exponent modifications ($\Delta \zeta$), in going from the BAO to the BMAO case, are also listed in the first column for each molecule.

The magnitude of the energy values can be understood from the changes in orbital exponents and the population of the orbitals in the promoted state. For example, the kinetic contribution to the contractive promotion is approximately reproduced by:

 $\frac{1}{2}p\left[\zeta^{2}(BMAO) - \zeta^{2}(BAO)\right] \doteq p(\zeta \triangle \zeta) \doteq p(\zeta \triangle \zeta)(27.2) \text{ eV},$ where p is the orbital population. Thus, for example, the very large effect in N₂ is the result of the large population (1.20) and the large $\triangle \zeta$. F₂ has a large population (1.03) but a small $\triangle \zeta$, while C₂ has a large $\triangle \zeta$ but a smaller population (0.43), both factors are even smaller in Be₂ and very

small in Li2. The really large changes in the orbital exponents are the increases in the 2PC orbitals. This is in agreement with the repeatedly expressed idea that contractive promotion is linked to constructive interference. The changes in the other orbital exponents seem to be determined by a more complicated chain of cross influences. We consider it, however, very significant that in <u>all</u> cases the total molecular contractive promotion shows the following characteristics: the kinetic energy increases, the potential energy decreases, and the total energy change is positive, but small compared to its kinetic or potential parts. In short, contractive promotion essentially shifts energy from the potential to the kinetic category and this shift is at least of the order of magnitude of the calculated binding energy. Except for C_2 , this behavior of the contractive promotion also determines the signs of the kinetic and potential parts of the total BMAO molecular promotion energy.

QUASI-CLASSICAL INTERACTION

Factors Influencing Quasi-classical Energies

A great variety is observed in the orbital pair contributions to the quasi-classical energy in the various molecular systems. It indicates that many factors are involved.

First, there is the <u>weighting factor</u> for each orbital pair, which indicates how many times the orbital interaction occurs in the total. Thus, a pair involving two analogous orbitals, such as (b,b'), has a weighting factor of one, whereas, pairs involving two different orbitals (cross terms) have a weighting factor of two since either orbital can be on either atom, e.g., one has (l,b') and (b,l'). Finally, all pairs involving a π orbital are subject to an additional doubling to account for the equivalent $\overline{\pi}$ contribution. Thus, for examples, the (l,b') and (π,π') terms have a weighting factor of two, and so has the $(\pi,\overline{\pi'})$ term, but the (l,π') term has a weighting factor of four.

Secondly, there is the <u>population factor</u>, i.e., the product of the two orbital populations. Each orbital pair contribution is the product of the population factor and a "normalized" quasi-classical interaction energy between the two orbitals. The latter is the sum of the quasi-classical interactions arising between two unit nuclear point charges and the two unit electronic charge distributions represented by the densities of the specific orbitals involved. The population

factors vary from zero, when one or both of the orbitals are unoccupied, to about four which is common between doubly occupied i or l orbitals.

The normalized quasi-classical energy ("Coulomb Integral") of an orbital pair represents the electrostatic interaction between two neutral units. In each unit, the electronic cloud can be considered as "shielding" the nucleus. The effectiveness of this shielding depends upon the relative diffuseness of the electron cloud as well as its polarization. By "relative diffuseness" is meant the average diameter of the orbital cloud as compared to the internuclear distance. A relatively diffuse distribution tends to have a poorer shielding effect and a larger interaction energy than a contracted distribution which, otherwise, has the same polarization characteristics. Thus, the inner orbitals generally exhibit a high shielding effect. The overlap integral, S, gives a rough indication of shielding for fixed polarization. A large S indicates little shielding, while a very small S indicates almost complete shielding.

On the other hand, the polarization of the orbital cloud is of paramount importance. For example, a cloud will have a larger interaction with the other atom, if it is concentrated between that atom and its own nucleus. One can say that its nucleus is better shielded by such a polarized cloud. But the picture becomes less apt at the point where, as frequently

occurs, the interaction of the polarized electron cloud with the other atom, in particular its nucleus, becomes the dominant effect. It stands to reason that the electron-nuclear attraction terms are much more sensitive to the polarization effects than to variations in the diffuseness of the electron But for the electron-electron repulsion terms, both cloud. effects are consequential. The influence of polarization in simple interactions is shown in the comparative calculations by Fraga and Mulliken for various charge distributions in some valence bond structures, especially for H_2 (22). (They used the term "coulomb energy" for the interaction effects which, here, are referred to as quasi-classical.) Their results form a good introductory review to the quasi-classical effects associated with various spatial arrangements of charge distributions.

A given charge distribution can be contracted by an increase in the orbital exponent, ζ , but also by a change in hybridization, such as 1S and 2S mixing, and frequently both changes occur together. The polarization of the orbitals is largely due to hybridization, as given by the VAO decomposition in the appendix. But polarization of hybrid orbitals can also be influenced by changes in the ζ values, especially the 2RT ζ value.

The final factor to be considered is the internuclear distance. At very small distances, the quasi-classical inter-

actions are always repulsive since the nuclear-nuclear term is overwhelming. In the case of the π - π interaction, this remains so for all distances. The σ interaction terms become attractive in the range of actual interest. At very large distances, i.e., for small overlap values, the S-S interaction remains attractive, whereas the PG-PG interactions become repulsive due to quadrupole interactions. As a general rule, the smaller the internuclear distance, the larger the quasiclassical interaction will be and vice versa. This is so, since the electronic repulsion (shielding) increases less than the nuclear-electronic attractions as charge clouds approach and interpenetrate each other.

Discussion of Principal Contributions

Many of the orbital pairs, such as those involving an inner orbital, make an insignificant contribution to the total quasi-classical energy. On the other hand, a relatively few of the orbital pairs invariably contribute most of the total energy. In Table 2 the principal orbital pair contributions are summarized for the various molecular systems. Only the results of the BMAO and the SAO calculations are given since the BAO calculation shows only minor variations from the SAO case. In order to facilitate the discussion, the table contains the following pertinent information: the internuclear distances, the weighting factor for each contribution (given in parenthesis under the orbital pair designation), the

		Li ₂	N ₂	SAO F ₂	Be ₂	с ₂	Li ₂	N ₂	BMAO F2	Be ₂	с ₂
<u>R (ει, υ</u>	ı.)	5.05	2.07	2.68	3.78	2.35	5.05	2.07	2.68	3.78	2.35
				Bi	nding O	rbital	Pairs				
b,b (1)	Norm E Popul. Ov'lap	-1.02 0.99 0.77	-2.60 0.91 0.72	0.35 0.99 0.22	-1.83 0.10 0.37	-2.84 0.17 0.42	-0.94 0.99 0.75	-1.27 0.92 0.62	0.33 0.99 0.25	-1.09 0.06 0.37	-1.24 0.10 0.39
⊥, b' (2)	Norm E Popul. Ov'lap	0.00 0.36	-2.43 1.95 0.30	-0.29 1.99 0.12	-1.08 0.54 0.45	-1.75 0.65 0.46	0.00 0.32	-2.19 1.95 0.30	-0.32 1.99 0.14	-0.90 0.45 0.41	-1.26 0.55 0.34
Ъ <i>,</i> ТГ (4)	Norm E Popul.		-1.98 0.95	-0.20 1.99		-1.43 0.41		-1.72 0.96	-0.22 1.99		-1.08 0.32
				Anti	binding	Orbita	l P airs				
<u>n</u> , n .' (1)	Norm E Popul. Ov'lap	0.00	1.42 4.18 0.05	0.11 4.02 0.06	-0.12 2.84 0.40	0.02 2.51 0.37	0.00 0.15	1.18 4.18 0.17	0 .11 4.03 0.06	-0.22 3.10 0.47	-0.25 2.88 0.38
⊥ ,771 (4)	Norm E Popul.		0.73 2.04	0.06 4.01		0.24 1.58		0.68 2.04	0.07 4.01		0.09 1.70
Π,Π ⁻¹ (2)	Norm E Popul. Ov'lap		0.62 1.00 0.28	0.08 4.00 0.05	 	0.63 1.00 0.32		0.65 1.00 0.29	0.09 4.00 0.05		0.64 1.00 0.32
π,π' (2)	Norm E Popul.		0.28	0.03 4.00		0.30		0.30	0.03 4.00		0.31

Table 2	2.	Comparison	of	main	quasi-classical	contributions

.

normalized energy effects (Norm E), the population product factors (Popul.), and the overlap integrals (Ov'lap) when different from zero.

Binding are, in general, the (b,b'), (l,b') and (b,π') contributions. (See first section of Table 2.)

The usual attraction of the (b,b') term is associated with the localization of the electrons between the two nuclei whereby the electronic nuclear attraction becomes the overwhelming effect. This is accomplished by b orbitals which are mainly 2PC character or are strongly polarized S orbitals. The former usually has a more favorable effect, although this depends upon the diffuseness of the orbitals and the internuclear distance. A strongly polarized S orbital, while very favorable, is somewhat handicapped by the increase in the electronic repulsion arising from having the majority of its charge in the bond region. The population factor, which is always one or less, as well as the weighting factor of unity place a definite limit on the total affect of the (b,b') contribution.

In many instances the (l, b') interaction becomes the predominant attractive contribution, because it has the weighting factor two and a larger population factor which, in some cases, gets as large as three. Moreover, its normalized energy, too, is relatively large and attractive because of the nature of the l and b orbitals. The l orbitals are usually of

2S character, somewhat polarized away from the other nucleus and quite diffuse. The interpenetration of the orbitals, as indicated by the relatively large (ℓ, b') overlap, does not increase the electronic repulsion too much since it arises from rather diffuse distributions. Thus they counteract little the large nuclear attraction for the b orbital distribution (largely located in the bond region) which is the predominant effect. The more strongly polarized both orbitals are, the larger the normalized energy is.

The total (b, π^{\dagger}) contribution is quite large because of the large weighting factor of four. The reasons for the large attractive nature of the (b, π^{\dagger}) interaction are much the same as those noted for (ℓ, b^{\dagger}) interaction. Again, the normalized energy effect increases with increased polarization of the b orbitals.

The remaining interactions, namely (l, l'), (l, π') , (π, π') and $(\pi, \overline{\pi})$, are usually repulsive. The (l, l') interaction is repulsive when the lone-pair orbital is sufficiently polarized away from its nucleus since, thus, the nuclear-nuclear repulsion is domineering. This is the more common case and the repulsion can be substantial. If, on the other hand, the lone-pair becomes close to being pure 2S, then the (l, l') interaction can become somewhat attractive, e.g., in Be₂ and C₂. In any case, this contribution is important since it usually has a large population factor (between three

and four, unless it is zero).

The (l, π^{\prime}) interaction is similar to the (b, π^{\prime}) interaction except that it is now repulsive since the l orbital is always at least somewhat polarized away from the other nucleus. Here, the nuclear attractions for the l and π charge distributions are not enough to overcome the nuclear repulsion, i.e., the shielding is not great enough, mainly because of the polarization. The normalized energy for the (l,π^{\prime}) interaction is much smaller than that of the (b,π^{\prime}) interaction, but the larger population factor tends to reduce this difference somewhat. The large weighting factor of four also makes the (l,π^{\prime}) interaction of considerable importance.

The (π,π^{\dagger}) interaction is repulsive because of weak shielding, and also because of the strong electronic repulsion for two similar π distributions. For geometric reasons, this repulsion is much weaker for the $(\pi,\overline{\pi}^{\dagger})$ interactions which, therefore, are only about half as large. There is a weighting factor of two in both cases. The effects of the internuclear distance and the orbital exponent values (diffuseness) on these interactions can be easily seen from the results in the table.

From the preceding discussion, it can be seen that polarization is the most influential and the most predominant factor in the quasi-classical interactions. It occurs to some extent in practically all b orbitals and is very favorable for

the (b,π') and (l,b') interactions. However, because of orthogonalization, polarization of the b orbitals induces some complementary polarization of the l orbitals and the resulting (l,π') and (l,l') interactions will usually be repulsive. Shielding is important in that it can affect the relative magnitudes of these two opposing effects. It must be remembered, of course, that the other energetic interactions, such as interference and promotion, are essential factors in the determination of the electronic distributions from which the quasiclassical effects are calculated.

It is of interest to note that the net effect of the π electrons, i.e., the sum of the (b,π') , (l,π') , (i,π') , (π,π') and $(\pi,\overline{\pi}')$ contributions, is always repulsive. In $C_2(SAO)$, this effect is 1.02 eV, about twice as large as it is in $N_2(SAO)$.

Comparison of Different Approximations

The differences between the SAO and the BMAO calculations show a great regularity for all systems. In all, except F_2 , there is a general decrease in the polarization of the orbitals in going from the SAO to the BMAO case. This decrease almost invariably gives a decrease in the individual orbital pair contributions, and thus also the total. The only exception to this in Table 2 is the attractive (l, l') interaction in Be₂ and C₂ which, in agreement with the foregoing discussion of this case, is enhanced by the decrease in polarization of the ℓ orbital. There is very little change in the π orbitals, only a slight expansion due to a slight decrease in the ζ values. Usually, the decrease in polarization of the b orbital is due partly to a change in hybridization and partly to an increase in the 2PT ζ value. The latter also causes a contraction which further reduces the energy contributions, in particular for the (b,b') interactions.

Examination of Specific Contributions

Interactions in F₂

The results for F_2 are sufficiently different from those of the other molecular systems to warrant special consideration. The total quasi-classical interaction for $F_2(SAO)$ is zero and it is only slightly attractive for $F_2(BMAO)$. The smallness of these interactions, as compared to the other systems, is due to the large internuclear distance in comparison with the diameter of the atomic orbitals, as indicated by the large values of (ζ R) and the correspondingly small overlap integrals. This situation is caused by non-bonded repulsion of the π electrons, which are essentially lone-pair elec-The distance is, in fact, so large that the (b,b') trons. interaction is now repulsive, in agreement with the earlier discussion. The unique increase of the interactions in the BMAO case, as compared to the SAO case, is due to an increase in the polarization and expansion of the b orbital. It is

caused by the decrease in the 2PC ζ value since the hybridization remains essentially the same. Most of the differences between the SAO and the EMAO calculations are however, very small compared to those in the other systems.

(b,b') interactions

The normalized (b,b') interaction in Be_2 and C_2 is quite high because of the 2P σ character of the b orbital. Be₂ is the lower of the two because of the larger internuclear distance. It is also quite high in N2. Here, the strong polarization of the b orbital is less helpful, but the shorter internuclear distance makes the result for C_2 and N_2 quite similar. It is smaller in Li₂, because the b orbital has only slightly polarized 2S character. However, since it is quite diffuse (as noted by the large overlap), the electronic repulsion is small, and hence the total interaction is quite remarkable considering the large internuclear distance. The (b,b') contribution is almost the entire quasi-classical effect in Li₂ since the ℓ orbitals are unoccupied. For Be₂ and C2, however, the small population factors make the (b,b') contribution quite unimportant.

(l,b') interactions

The normalized (l,b') interaction is very large in N₂ because of the strong polarization of both the b and l orbitals. It is much smaller for Be₂ and C₂ because of the decrease in

polarization as well as larger internuclear distances. The lack of polarization of the l orbitals is especially effective. Be₂ is the smaller of the two for the same reasons. The decrease in the BMAO case for C₂ is also larger than usual because of the contraction of the l orbital as well as the decreased polarization of the b and l orbitals. The decrease for Be₂(BMAO) is somewhat reduced by the expansion of the lorbital. Again, the population factors for Be₂ and C₂ are quite small. The (l,b') interaction in F₂ is small for the reasons discussed previously.

(l,l') interactions

The (l, l') interaction obeys the general behavior in N₂ and F₂. Be₂ and C₂, however, are exceptions which have already been discussed. The increased attraction in C₂(BMAO) is much larger than in Be₂(BMAO) because of the changes in the l orbitals as mentioned above.

Interactions involving TT orbitals

The (b, π ') interaction is much larger in N₂ than in C₂ because of the increased polarization. It is much smaller in F₂. The (l,π '), (π,π ') and ($\pi,\overline{\pi}$ ') interactions follow the discussion given above in all cases. In spite of a population product which is four times larger, the results for F₂ are only about half as large as for N₂ and C₂. The (l,π ') interaction shows a quite large decrease in the C₂(BMAO) case which is due to the changes in the l orbital as already indicated. The (l, π') interaction is also much larger in N₂ because of the strong polarization of the l orbital.

Inner orbital interactions

Almost all contributions involving the inner orbitals are practically zero as is expected, with a few exceptions to be considered. There is an exception in the $N_2(SAO)$ case where the l orbital is so strongly polarized away from the nucleus that there is a substantial repulsive energy (0.26 eV) with the inner orbital of the other atom. This interaction becomes almost negligible in the BMAO case because of the decreased polarization. However, the (i, l^{i}) contribution in the EMAO cases of C_2 and Be_2 is slightly attractive (-0.07 eV and -0.10 eV respectively) since the l orbital is almost pure 2S character. Note the similarity to the behavior of the (l, l^{i}) contributions. Another surprisingly large contribution is the attractive (i, b^{i}) interaction in N_2 (-0.34 eV in the SAO case and -0.17 eV in the BMAO case). This is due mainly to the polarized nature of the b orbital.

ar allo inter jutat

INTERFERENCE

Factors Affecting the Interference Energies

As has been discussed elsewhere, the interference energy arises from the fact that the actual density differs from the quasi-classical density by certain orbital pair contributions which represent either constructive or destructive interference effects. For atomic orbitals which have somewhat complicated contours the difference between the two types may not always be immediately obvious from the geometry. Constructive interference exists if there is an over-all smoothing of the density, destructive interference takes place if the opposite occurs. More specifically, we speak of constructive interference if the <u>kinetic</u> interference energy is <u>negative</u> and of destructive interference if the <u>kinetic</u> interference energy is <u>positive</u>.

In general, constructive interference is also associated with a positive potential interference energy, and destructive interference with a negative potential contribution. To this, there are, however, quite a few exceptions, in particular if the interference affects only little the electron density near the nuclei. The total interference energy is almost always determined by the kinetic part, so that constructive interference implies a binding effect, whereas destructive interference implies an antibinding effect.

Each orbital pair interaction is the product of two

factors, bond-order and resonance integral. This is similar to the quasi-classical energies, being products of populations and normalized orbital interactions (coulomb integrals). In fact the relative size of a given bond-order appears to be closely related to the populations of the orbitals involved. Note the smallness of p(b,b') in Be₂ and C₂. Also, the various pair contributions have the same weighting factors which were discussed for the quasi-classical effects; two for cross terms, an additional two for π contributions except $(\pi, \overline{\pi}')$.

The situation is somewhat different if the bond-order vanishes, e.g., for the $\mathcal{J}-\pi$ and $\pi-\overline{\pi}$ cross terms. Although here the kinetic interference energy vanishes, there is in general a small potential contribution from the electron interaction terms. Such cases will be discussed further below. Their influence on the total interference effect is, however, small.

A notable difference to the quasi-classical interaction is the fact, that an arbitrary change of sign (or a more general phase change) in the definition of one of the atomic orbitals in a pair will simultaneously change the sign of the bond-order and of the resonance integral while leaving the total interference energy invariant. However, in almost all cases at hand it was found that the resonance integral between two valence atomic orbitals corresponded to constructive

interference, i.e., had a negative kinetic resonance integral. Consequently, a positive bond-order usually corresponds to constructive interference and a binding effect in the interference energy, whereas a negative bond-order goes hand in hand with destructive interference and an antibinding effect.

For a given orbital pair, a large positive bond-order implies that the orbitals are mainly involved only in a bonding MO [see $p(\pi,\pi^{\dagger})$ in N₂ and C₂ and $p(b,b^{\dagger})$ in F₂]. Similarly, a large negative bond-order implies that the orbitals are mainly involved only in antibonding MO's [see $p(l,l^{\dagger})$ in C₂ and Be₂]. When one or both of the orbitals are involved in both types, the bond-order will be smaller and most often negative [see $p(\pi,\pi^{\dagger})$ in F₂ as well as the bond-orders involving the inner orbitals]. These results are quite similar to those which occur in valence bond structures where the individual antibonding effects are larger than the bonding effect.

Discussion of Principal Types

Similar to the quasi-classical effects, the interference energies are functions of many variables, such as; the internuclear distance, shielding (by all electrons), the orbital exponents (relative contraction or expansion), and the spatial orientation of the interacting orbitals (includes type of orbital as well as degree of polarization). Thus,

considerable variations occur in the results. They are best understood by considering the interference densities from which they originate. (These densities are meant to contain the bond-orders as well as the orbital densities in the resonance integrals.) It emerges that, in practically all cases, the interference density belongs to one of a small number of general basic types. In discussing them, the following terminology will be used. Since the interference density is a density modification, it can be regarded as a "shift" of electronic charge from one region of space into another, due to the interference between two orbitals. The "recipient region" for the orbital pair, (Aa,Bb), will be that region where there is an increase in the electronic charge as compared with the quasi-classical density. The "dative region" is that region where there is a decrease in the electronic charge. The change in the electronic interaction part of the shielded nuclear attraction terms, due to the charge shift, is referred to as a change in the shielding effect.

The type I+ interference density is the "normal" constructive type, such as found in H_2 . The recipient region is the bond region while the dative regions lie more or less symmetrically about the nuclei. There is a large drop in kinetic energy and a smaller rise in the shielded nuclear attraction, the total being quite favorable for binding. Usually, there is a substantial decrease in the shielding effect

which aids in keeping the rise in the shielded nuclear attraction small. Analogously, the type I- represents the "normal" destructive interference and is just the reverse of type I+. There is now a rise in kinetic energy and a smaller drop in shielded nuclear attraction, the total being unfavorable for binding. There are cases where types I+ and I- differ mainly in the sign of the bond-order, but little in the resonance integrals.

Type II+ is a less frequent constructive type which differs from type I+ in that the dative regions lie strictly on the far sides of the nuclei (away from the other nucleus), while the recipient region still lies in the bond region. The consequence is that the drop in kinetic energy is not nearly as great as in the first case (type I+) and the rise in the shielded nuclear attraction is very small (the decrease in the shielding effect is also very small). In some more extreme cases, there is actually a decrease in the shielded nuclear attraction since the potential attraction is greater in the recipient region, where it arises from two shielded nuclei, than in the dative region where it comes from one shielded This peculiar case is rather close to what used to nucleus. be considered by earlier workers as the essential effect of overlap in chemical bonding. In fact, it corresponds, however, to rather untypical special situations. The destructive counterpart of type II+ is type II-. The recipient regions

lie rather toward the far sides of the nuclei, and the dative region lies in the bond region. This shift of charge is accompanied by a smaller than normal rise in kinetic energy, but only a minor drop in shielded nuclear attraction. In extreme cases, there will actually be a considerable rise in the shielded nuclear attraction [see the (i,b') interaction in N_2].

Another constructive type which, however, occurs rather rarely, may be called type III+. In this case, the charge is shifted from the bond region side near the nuclei, i.e., the side closest to the opposite nucleus, into the center bond region in a quite diffuse, spread out manner. The drop in kinetic energy is smaller than in the normal case (type I+), and the rise in shielded nuclear attraction is much larger so that the two effects tend to cancel each other [see the (l,b')interactions in Be₂(SAO) and C₂(BMAO)]. The destructive counterpart, type III-, occurs mainly with the inner orbitals. The recipient regions are small, centrally located regions about the nuclei while the dative regions are a little farther away from the nuclei on the bond side. There is now a considerable rise in kinetic energy and, in general, a smaller but quite large drop in shielded nuclear attraction, leaving a slightly repulsive net effect. In an extreme form of this case, the potential energy may actually overcome the kinetic, leading to a binding effect [see (i, l') in N₂].

ine variations within these types are the result of dif-

ferences in internuclear distances, bond-orders and orbital hybridization. The latter largely determines how the recipient and dative regions are distributed in space and to which basic type a given interaction will belong.

Comparison of Different Approximations

In going from the SAO to the BAO calculations, there is a general expansion of the orbitals and very little change in the hybridization. The changes which occur are quite small but they follow a general pattern. Because of the expansion, there is a decrease in the attractive contributions and an increase in the repulsive ones. This is usually so for the separate parts of each contribution as well as the net result. These changes are largely caused by an increase in the anti-bonding bond-orders, due to the increase in overlap. The inner orbital contributions and the results of Be₂ and C₂ show the largest deviations from these general trends, since here hybridization changes are no longer insignificant.

Much stronger hybridization changes occur in the BMAO calculation and result in much larger and more erratic changes. In general, however, all contributions are increased by the decrease in polarization. The changes in the bonding orbital contributions are usually more predominant because of the 2PC contraction and thus the total interference result becomes more binding. On the whole, the modifications are due to the fact that the interference interactions occur closer to

the nuclei.

These differences can be seen in Table 3, which summarizes the principal orbital pair contributions for all molecules in the SAO and BMAO approximations. For each orbital pair, there is given the kinetic and potential (and total) energy effect as well as the bond-order (p).

Examination of Specific Contributions

π contributions

We consider the (π,π') contributions first, since their interference effects are simplest. In N₂ and C₂ they are of type I+ and are very similar to the constructive interference found in H₂. In F₂ this contribution is of type I- and corresponds to a closed shell repulsion. It is mainly this repulsive (non-bonded) interaction of the π electrons that is the reason for the relatively large internuclear distance and, thus, the small overlapping in F₂.

σ contributions in Li₂, N₂ and F₂

The contributions from the σ electrons show a basic difference between the molecular systems of Li₂, N₂ and F₂, where there is an odd number of electrons per atom, and Be₂ and C₂, where there is an even number of electrons per atom. This difference is most obvious in the (ℓ ,b') contributions, being repulsive in N₂ and F₂ and attractive in C₂ and Be₂.

The (b,b') contribution is "normal", type I+, in both Li₂

		Li ₂	^N 2	SAO F2	Be 2	°2		Li ₂	^N 2	BMAO F2	Be ₂	с ₂
b,b' (1)	KIN POT TOT P	-3.61 2.68 -0.93 0.56	-20.73 8.32 -12.41 0.59	-30.66 16.23 -14.43 0.82	-0.04 -0.28 -0.32 0.05	-0.45 -0.58 -1.03 0.08	-	2.97 1.98 0.99 0.57	-28.86 10.99 -17.87 0.63	-29.83 15.67 -14.16 0.80	-0.17 -0.15 -0.32 0.04	-1.17 -0.06 -1.23 0.06
Q , Q' (1)	KIN POT TOT P	0.00	0.70 -0.32 0.38 -0.16	1.60 -0.82 0.78 -0.14	20.72 -20.42 0.30 -0.84	21.62 -16.08 5.54 -0.75		0.00	3.80 -0.73 3.07 -0.43	1.48 -0.73 0.75 -0.14	3.22 -2.71 0.51 -1.10	70.48 -79.44 -8.96 -0.83
Q ,b' (2)	KIN POT TOT P	0.00	8.40 -0.57 7.84 -0.35	4.29 -3.07 1.22 -0.19	-6.68 6.00 -0.69 0.40	-12.34 7.37 -4.96 0.47		 0.00	8.88 -2.30 6.58 -0.34	4.61 -3.21 1.40 -0.21	-1.86 -0.40 -2.26 0.35	-21.43 21.57 0.14 0.44
ТГ,ТТ' (2)	KIN POT TOT P		-15.61 6.80 -8.80 0.78	0.84 -0.49 0.35 -0.09	 	-11.24 4.96 -6.28 0.76			-15.19 6.61 -8.58 0.77	0.91 -0.54 0.37 -0.10		-11.07 4.93 -6.14 0.76
i,b' (2)	KIN POT TOT P	0.95 -0.34 0.61 -0.10	0.02 1.12 1.15 -0.01	0.00 0.01 0.01 -0.00	-1.00 0.49 -0.51 0.03	1.86 -0.62 1.24 -0.04	-	0.70 0.14 0.56 0.09	0.23 1.21 1.44 -0.02	0.00 0.01 0.01 -0.00	-0.81 3.23 2.42 -0.13	-5.39 4.15 -1.24 0.08
i,¶' (2)	KIN POT TOT P	0.07 -0.02 0.05 -0.01	0.51 -0.82 -0.31 0.04	0.00 -0.02 -0.02 0.00	5.83 -5.14 0.69 -0.25	2.20 -0.68 1.52 -0.10		0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00	0.55 -1.38 -0.83 0.04	0.01 -0.03 -0.02 0.00	3.20 -5.67 -2.47 0.19	21.75 -22.36 -0.61 -0.32

Table 3. Comparison of main sharing interference contributions

and F_2 , and of type II+ in N_2 (because of the extreme polarization). It is fairly large in F_2 and N_2 but is quite small in Li₂ because of the relatively small ζ values and large internuclear distance.

The (l, l') and (l, b') contributions, which are absent in Li₂, are antibinding due to destructive interference in both F₂ and N₂. The (l, l') contribution in both, as well as the (l, b') contribution in F₂, are normal, type I-, and quite small, compared to the (b, b') contributions. They are typical non-bonded repulsions. The (l, b') contribution in N₂ is, however, of type II- and shows an unusually large repulsion because of the polarized nature of the l and b orbitals. In the N₂(BMAO) case, polarization is less pronounced and the repulsion decreases accordingly.

Because of small overlapping, there are no significant contributions in F_2 arising from the inner shells. In Li₂ and N₂, however, there exists a comparatively large antibinding (i,b') contribution. It is normal, type I-, in Li₂, but in N₂ the polarization of the b orbital leads to an extreme case of type II-, with a surprisingly large rise in the shielded nuclear attraction. In N₂ there is also a smaller, but quite significant, binding (i, l') contribution which is an extreme case of type III- (here, the dative regions lie also on the far sides of the nuclei and there is a large drop in the shielded nuclear attraction. The total \bigcirc contribution to the interference energy in Li₂ and N₂ is antibinding in all cases except one [Li₂(SAO), 0.39 eV; Li₂(BMAO), 0.13 eV; N₂(SAO), 5.32 eV; N₂(BMAO), -0.37 eV]. In Li₂, this is due to the strong inner shell interaction, (i,b'); in N₂, it arises largely from the nonbonded repulsion of the (l,b') interaction.

Since there are no other interference terms in Li_2 , the result is that here the binding energy is entirely furnished by the quasi-classical effects, a consequence which is in complete contradiction to previous qualitative understanding and was already noted by Mulliken and Fraga. In N₂, the similar behavior of the σ contribution is concealed by the strongly binding π interference.

Whether or not this result for Li_2 is characteristic for the <u>actual</u> molecular situation is, however, rather questionable. It may be an artifact since the deviations of Ransil's calculations from the virial theorem are larger than the interference energies in the case of Li_2 . It may well be that a more accurate calculation will find a negative interference contribution in Li_2 . The same may be true in N₂. In fact, the BMAO approximation gives here a slightly attractive interference energy as well as a better approximation to the virial theorem. It may also be noted that, in Li_2 , the negative kinetic interference energy is clearly responsible for the contractive promotion which is seen to furnish a large part of the potential energy drop.

On the other hand, it may be that in N_2 the strong π bonds pull the nuclei so close together that the σ orbitals are forced into non-binding or antibinding. In F_2 , where the antibinding repulsion of π lone pair contributions prevent a too close approach, the total σ contribution is binding.

σ contributions in Be₂ and C₂

The results for Be_2 and C_2 are quite different because of the large and peculiar influence of the ℓ and i orbitals. Also, the variations between the SAO and BMAO calculations are much greater. Due to the small population of the b orbitals, the negative $p(\ell, \ell')$ bond-orders are larger than all others. Furthermore, the $p(\ell, b')$ bond-orders are now positive, in contrast to the situation in N_2 and F_2 , so that the (ℓ, b') interference is binding; except in $C_2(BMAO)$, where it is almost zero.

The total \mathcal{O} interference energy is binding in all cases except one $[Be_2(SAO), -1.01 \text{ eV}; Be_2(BMAO), -4.54 \text{ eV}; C_2(SAO),$ +0.11 eV; $C_2(BMAO), -14.10 \text{ eV}]$. This binding effect is now due to the negative shielded nuclear attraction contributions being larger than the positive kinetic energy terms. This unusual situation is related to the 1S-2S hybridization and is paid for by opposing promotion effects associated with the expansion of the 1S orbital by hybridization.

The (b,b') contribution in both Be₂ and C₂ is an extreme

case of type II+ in which there is a decrease in shielded nuclear attraction as well as in kinetic energy. The energies are very small, however, because of the small bond-orders.

The (l, l^{\prime}) contribution in Be₂ and the SAO case of C₂ is normal (type I-), but because of the contracted nature of the l orbitals, due to 1S admixture, the rise in kinetic energy and drop in shielded nuclear attraction are very large effects. In the BMAO case of Be₂, where the l orbitals are somewhat expanded, these effects are much smaller. In the BMAO calculation of C₂, the (l, l^{\prime}) contribution is an extreme case of type III- and is strongly binding.

The (l,b') contribution, for the SAO calculations, is of type III+ (binding) in Be₂ and of type I+ in C₂. For the BMAO calculations, it is an extreme case of type II+ in Be₂ [similar to the (b,b') contribution] and is close to type III+ in C₂. For the latter, the drop in kinetic energy and rise in shielded nuclear attraction are large effects while the total effect is only slightly antibinding.

The (i,b') contribution, for the SAO calculations, is of type I+ in Be₂ and of type I- in C₂. For the BMAO calculations, it is similar to type III+ in Be₂ (and antibinding) while in C₂ it is of type I+.

The (i, l') contribution is an extreme case of type III-(and therefore is binding) in Be₂(SAO), Be₂(BMAO) and in G₂(BMAO). It is of type 1- in G₂(SAO).

These peculiar energy relationships in Be_2 and C_2 are very different from those obtained in the cases where the calculated wave function yields binding and describes a molecule near the equilibrium position. This is certainly not at all the case for the present Be_2 and C_2 calculations, and it is questionable whether the calculated wave functions could correspond to any stable physical situation.

Second-order contributions

For orbital pairs of different symmetry species, the bond-orders vanish and the interference energies arise solely from the exchange part of the electronic interactions. Such energy contributions are found for (i, π '), (l, π '), (b, π ') and $(\pi, \overline{\pi}')$ and occur only in C_2 , N_2 and F_2 . In all cases, they are negative, i.e., binding, in agreement with similar findings in other molecular analyses (12 and 13). [The only exception is the (l, π') contribution in F_2 , but this term, like the others in F_2 , is insignificantly small.] In C_2 and N_2 , the combined effect of these terms is far from insignificant (-6.90 eV for C_2 and -7.48 eV for N_2 in the SAO approximation and only slightly smaller in the BMAO approximation). These interactions appear to be similar to the inter-atomic sharing penetration terms which will be discussed in the subsequent section. The specific nature of this decrease in electronic interaction is difficult to ascertain without a detailed study.

SHARING PENETRATION

The most striking feature of the sharing penetration energies is the parallelism existing between them and the interference effects. It confirms the idea that this part of the electronic repulsion energy is intimately related to the sharing of electrons. Also confirmed is the view that the over-all effect of these contributions is, in general, bondopposing.

The parallelism mentioned arises from the fact that the exchange contributions to the inter-atomic pairpopulations reflect, to some degree, the behavior of the bond-orders for the various orbital pairs. For, each inter-atomic sharing penetration energy is essentially the negative product of such an exchange pairpopulation and the corresponding inter-orbital coulomb integral.

Table 4 collects the significant orbital and orbital-pair sharing penetration energies for all molecules in the SAO and BMAO approximations. For the inter-atomic terms there are also listed the corresponding exchange pairpopulations and bondorders.

In every instance, the exchange pairpopulation has the same sign as the corresponding bond-order. Thus, the <u>con</u>-<u>structive</u> interference of all (b,b') pairs is associated with a <u>negative</u> sharing penetration energy; much weaker for Be₂ and C_2 where these orbitals are poorly populated than in Li₂, F₂

		Li ₂	N ₂	SAO ^F 2	Be ₂	с ₂	BMAO Li ₂ N ₂ F ₂ Be ₂ C ₂
				I	nter-ato	omic Con	ntributions
b,b' (1)	E q _x p	-2.89 0.501 0.564	-10.70 0.514 0.587	6.48 0.502 0.817	-0.14 0.003 0.054	-0.43 0.010 0.075	-2.81 -10.56 -6.55 -0.12 -0.34 0.501 0.512 0.503 0.002 0.006 0.570 0.627 0.799 0.046 0.065
<u>0,</u> r' (1)	E 9 _x p		0.04 -0.004 -0.160	0.04 0.005 0.138	1.13 -0.138 -0.838	1.69 -0.095 -0.751	$\begin{array}{rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr$
1 ,b' (2)	E q _x p		0.96 -0.062 -0.352	0.20 0.010 0.194	-1.78 0.272 0.405	-3.66 0.326 0.469	$\begin{array}{rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr$
Π1Γ' (2)	E q _x p		-5.72 0.500 0.780	0.02 0.002 0.094		-4.94 0.500 0.760	$\begin{array}{rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr$
				I	n tra-at o	omic Cor	ntributions
b	E	1.67	4.74	7.07	1.46	2.69	1.63 5.03 6.78 1.45 2.51
Q.	E		-0.30	-0.04	0.43	1.94	0.56 -0.05 -0.26 0.35
Π	Έ		4.83	-0.03		4.02	4.83 -0.03 4.08
i	Е	0.09	-0.02	0.00	-0.35	0.06	0.07 -0.02 0.00 -0.55 -1.18

Table 4. Comparison of main sharing penetration contributions

and N_2 , with filled bonding orbitals. The <u>destructive</u> interference of the (l,l') pairs is associated with a positive sharing penetration energy, very weak in F_2 and N_2 , having small bond-orders, but rather substantial in Be_2 and C_2 , with large negative bond-orders. Most striking is the correlation for the (l,b') pair. The F_2 and N_2 molecules, with a moderate destructive interference, have a moderate positive sharing penetration contribution while, on the contrary, Be_2 and C_2 have substantial negative sharing penetration terms corresponding to marked constructive interference (the different behavior of Be_2 and C_2 has been discussed in the preceding section). Finally, the (π,π') orbital pair shows large negative sharing penetration energies for N_2 and C_2 where there exists a strong constructive interference, but only a very slight positive sharing penetration energy for F_2 where destructive interference generates non-bonded π repulsions. As a general rule, the sharing penetration terms are larger in magnitude in the case of constructive interference than for a comparable case of destructive interference.

These features of the inter-atomic sharing penetration energies also provide the key for understanding the intraatomic sharing penetration energies. For, a change in the amount of inter-atomic sharing is always accompanied by compensating intra-atomic effects of opposite sign. Thus, the intra-atomic T contributions are large and positive in N₂

. •
and C_2 while small and negative in F_2 . The positive sharing penetration energies for the bonding orbitals become intelligible if one appreciates that they compensate the inter-atomic contributions of the (b,b') pair and one of the two (ℓ ,b') pairs. This explains their positive sign and correlates with their magnitudes. Similarly, the intra-atomic sharing penetration energies for the ℓ orbitals must be considered as compensation for the inter-atomic (ℓ , ℓ ') pair and the remaining (ℓ ,b') term. In this way, one can see why F_2 and N_2 have negative contributions whereas C_2 and Be₂ have positive contributions, all relatively weak.

These arguments gloss over the inner shell and the other cross term contributions. While they are generally unimportant, they are not altogether negligible as can be seen by the intra-atomic contributions included in the summary table.

There is a remarkable consistency between the results derived from the SAO and BMAO approximations so that the differences hardly merit elaboration except maybe for the change in sign of the intra-atomic lone-pair contribution in Be_2 . This value is, however, consistent in that it compensates for the corresponding inter-atomic effects.

In general, but not always, the sum of compensating intra- and inter-atomic contributions will be positive. The molecular sums of all sharing penetration terms are always positive, i.e., bend opposing, as mentioned before.

CONCLUSIONS

There exists a significant difference between the present study and that of the hydrides. All members of the latter series exhibited qualitative similarities, the differences in their energy partitionings were of a quantitative nature and conformed to simple trends. In contrast, the members of the homonuclear series have far greater individualities so that the energy partitioning yields not only differences in degree but also in kind. The pattern of individual terms is much more varied, cross-interactions more complicated, occasional erratic behavior more common.

The execution of the analysis has yielded new information regarding the behavior of the various energy terms, such as the quasi-classical and interference interactions, under more complicated conditions. It has shed light on the deeper differences between the five molecules treated, particularly as regards the differences between the group of Be₂ and C₂ and the rest of the molecules. The difficulties encountered in the analysis may in part suggest a need for improvements in the method but they reveal, at least to an equal degree, serious deficiencies in the wave functions analyzed. A similar analysis of analogous, but better, wave functions would therefore be very instructive, in particular if carried out as a function of the internuclear distance.

Even under the present handicaps, many general ground

rules are always obeyed by the individual energy fragments defined in the present partitioning; such as, for example the instrumental role of contractive promotion in the lowering of the potential energy upon molecular formation.

BIBLIOGRAPHY

1.	Revs. Mod. Phys. <u>32</u> , 169-476 (1960)
2.	McLean, A. D., A. Weiss and M. Yoshimine, Revs. Mod. Phys. <u>32</u> , 211 (1960)
3.	Allen, L. C. and A. M. Karo, Revs. Mod. Phys. <u>32</u> , 275 (1960)
4.	Roothaan, C. C. J., Revs. Mod. Phys. <u>23</u> , 69 (1951)
5.	Roothaan, C. C. J., J. Chem. Phys. <u>19</u> , 1445 (1951)
6.	Ruedenberg, K., J. Chem. Phys. <u>19</u> , 1459 (1951)
7.	Ruedenberg, K., C. C. J. Roothaan and W. Jaunzemis, J. Chem. Phys. <u>24</u> , 201 (1956)
8.	Roothaan, C. C. J., J. Chem. Phys. <u>24</u> , 947 (1956)
9.	Coulson, C. A., Revs. Mod. Phys. <u>32</u> , 170 (1960)
10.	Ruedenberg, K., Physical nature of the chemical bond, [to be published in Revs. Mod. Phys. 1962]
11.	Mehler, E. and K. Ruedenberg, A study of binding in the hydrogen molecule ion, [to be published in J. Chem. Phys. <u>ca</u> . 1963]
12.	Edmiston, C. and K. Ruedenberg, Analysis of the binding energy in the water molecule, [to be published in J. Chem. Phys. <u>ca</u> . 1963]
13.	Layton, E. M. and K. Ruedenberg, Theoretical analysis of the chemical bond in diatomic hydride molecules, [to be published in J. Chem. Phys. <u>ca</u> . 1963]
14.	Ransil, B. J., Revs. Mod. Phys. <u>32</u> , 239 and 244 (1960)
15.	Mulliken, R. S., Revs. Mod. Phys. <u>32</u> , 232 (1960)
16.	McWeeny, R., Revs. Mod. Phys. <u>32</u> , 335 (1960)
17.	LÖwdin, P. O., Phys. Rev. <u>97</u> , 1474 (1955)
18.	Bingel, W. A., J. Chem. Phys. <u>32</u> , 1522 (1960)
19.	McWeeny, R., Proc. Roy. Soc. (London) <u>A235</u> , 496 (1956)

McWeeny, R., Proc. Roy. Soc. (London) <u>A237</u>, 355 (1956)
McWeeny, R., Proc. Roy. Soc. (London) <u>A241</u>, 239 (1957)
Fraga, S. and R. S. Mulliken, Revs. Mod. Phys. <u>32</u>, 254 (1960)

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The author is grateful to Dr. K. Ruedenberg for making this investigation possible and for his many helpful suggestions with it.

He is also grateful to Dr. B. J. Ransil for supplying the wave functions which were analyzed.

The author gives special thanks to Mr. E. Miller Layton for his generous assistance and for many informative discussions on our related projects. Mr. Layton performed most of the work involved in the preparation of the data tapes as well as the operation of the computer during the numerical computations.

The author wishes to thank Mr. Clyde Edmiston and Mr. David Wilson for their help with part of the programing of the analysis.

The author also wishes to thank the personnel of the Cyclone Computer Laboratory for their assistance with the computations and the personnel of the Ames Laboratory drafting department, especially Mr. Dale Haugland, for their assistance with the preparation of the figures in this manuscript.

The author wishes to express his appreciation to his wife, Donna, for her patience and understanding throughout the course of his graduate studies, as well as for her aid in the preparation of this manuscript.

APPENDIX: PRESENTATION OF NUMERICAL RESULTS

Each of the figures, 3 through 17, represents the complete molecular analysis for one of the fifteen calculations. The molecules are arranged in order of increasing molecular weight. For each molecule, the approximations are listed in the order: SAO, BAO, BMAO.

Within each molecular analysis, the first section, labelled "Binding Energy Partitioning", gives a summary of the binding energy totals for the various energetic effects: promotion (both hybridization and contraction), quasi-classical, sharing penetration, sharing interference and the total. It lists the binding energy fragments by atom and bond (and for the molecule), decomposed in terms of kinetic interactions (KIN) and potential interactions. For the intra-atomic promotion contributions, the latter are subdivided into nuclear attraction (NA) and other electronic interactions (OEI). For all other intra- and inter-atomic contributions, the potential contributions are decomposed into shielded nuclear attraction (SNA) and other electronic interactions (OEI). Non-zero contraction promotion occurs for the BMAO cases only.

The second section, labelled "Valence Atomic Orbitals", gives the VAO decompositions in terms of orthogonal Slatertype-orbital basis functions. It also lists the inter-atomic overlap integrals of the VAO's In this section, as well as in the following sections, the $\overline{\pi}$ terms are not included

since they are identical to the π terms.

The third section, labelled "Density Contributions", gives the populations and inter-atomic bond-orders of the VAO's. The valence inactive (p), the valence active (v), and the total (q) electronic populations are given for each orbital.

The fourth section, entitled "Exchange Contributions to Pairpopulations", gives the decomposition of the interferencefree intra- and inter-atomic orbital pair coefficients of the exchange pair-density, $\pi_x(x_1, x_2)$, in terms of promotion state and sharing penetration contributions. The latter is subdivided into intra- and inter-atomic orbital pair fragments.

The last two tables give the detailed partitioning, according to orbitals and orbital pairs, of the intra- and interatomic summary presented in the first table ("Binding Energy Partitioning") discussed above. The intra-atomic promotion effects are given in terms of the orthogonal spherical atomic orbitals while the intra-atomic sharing penetration as well as all inter-atomic effects are given in terms of the VAO's. In the SNA rows of the inter-atomic sharing interference column, the left entry gives the potential interaction of the interference density, arising from the orbital pair (Aa,Bb), with the neutral atom A while the right entry gives that interaction with the neutral atom B. Equivalent orbital pair con-

tributions to the inter-atomic energies are given only once, e.g., the (b,i') contribution is not included since it is equivalent to the (i,b') contribution which is given. (See the discussion about the weighting factor in the chapter on the quasi-classical interactions.) All energy terms in these tables are in units of electron volts.

	-	Promotion		- Quasi-					Total
		PR0	PRC	Classical	Penetralion	Interference			
Li	KIN NA OEI TUI	0.53 -0.92 0.31 -0.07	0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00		1.76 1.76		0.53 -0.92 2.07 1.69		
Bond	KIN SNA OEI TOT			-1.08 -1.08	-2.82 -2.82	-1.57 0.99 0.99 -0.02 0.39	-1.57 0.90 -2.84 -3.51		
^{L1} 2	KIN SNA OEI TOT	1.06 -1.84 0.62 -0.14	0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00	-1.08 -1.08	0.69 0.69	-1.57 0.99 0.99 -0.02 0.39	-0.51 -0.94 1.27 -0.14		

BINDING EXENSY FARTIFICNING

VALENCE ATOMIC OBBITALS

	1	VAO Expansio	n	Overlap Integrals			
<u>Orbital</u>	15	25	2.0	1	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	
1	0.9999997	-0.001960	0.001150	0.000086	0.090536	0.094319	
ď	0.001652	0.974527	0.224262	0.090530	0.773882	0.360853	
1	-0.001560	-0.224260	0.974528	0.094319	0.360853	0.030649	

DENSITY CONTRIBUTIONS

	V.	AO Populatio	ons	Inter-Atomic Bond-Orders			
Orbital	p	<u>v</u>	9	<u>i</u>	bb	11	
1	2.014623	-0.009862	2.004761	-0.004360	-0.100996	-0.007613	
ď	0.568954	0,1+27112	0.396066	-0.100996	0.563902	-0.000351	
1	0.000029	-0.000856	-0.000826	-0.007613	-0.000381	0.001000	

EXCHANGE CONTRIBUTIONS TO PAIRPOPULATIONS

Promotion State			<u> </u>							
Orbita	(I 11_	ntra-Ato	mic) 1	(I 1	(Intra-Atomic) bl			(Inter-Atomic)		
i	2.012	-0.007	0.000	-0.000	0.006	-0.000	0.000	-0.005	-0.001	
ъ	-0.007	1.004	-0.001	0.006	-0.503	0.001	-0.005	0.501	-0.000	
1	0.001	-0.001	0.000	-0.000	0.001	-0,000	-0.001	-0.000	0.000	

Figure 3. Binding energy decomposition and description of electron distribution for Li2, SAO approximation

			H	promotion —		Sharing Penetrati			
Orbital		15	<u>2S</u> 2P o		Total	Orbi	tal _		
15	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.47 -1.05 0.21 -0.37	0.05 -0.05 -0.38 -0.39	0.00 0.00 0.4 <u>4</u> 0.44	0.46 -1.04 0.24 -0.33	i	KIN SNA OEI TOT	0.09 0.09	
25	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.05 -0.05 -0.38 -0.39	-0.31 1.53 0.01 1.23	0.00 0.00 -0.00 -0.00	-0.21 1.42 -0.79 0.42	ъ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	1.67 1.67	
2Pơ	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.00 0.00 0.44 0.44	0.00 0.00 -0.00 -0.00	0.28 -1.31 -0.00 -1.03	0.28 -1.31 0.87 -0.16	1	KIN SNA OEI TOT	-0.00 -0.00	
Li	KIN NA OEI TOT				0.53 -0.92 0.31 -0.07	Li	KIN SNA DEI TOT	1.76 1.76	

INTRA-ATOMIC CONTRIBUTION TO BINDING ENERGY

	Quasi-	Sha	ring	Total
<u>Li Li</u>	Classical	Penetration	Interference	
KIN 1 1 SNA OEI TOT	. e e . e e	?e 22	.82 22 .22 .22	. 20 17 22 . 86
i b ^{KIN} OEI TOT	24 94	. £3 . K3	.95 2824 02 .01	.95 36 .22 .68
KIN 1 1 SNA OEI TOT	. ? l . l ?	. l.î . ??	.07 0200 20 .05	. 27 22 . 22 . 26
KIN b b SNA JEI TOT	-1.01 -1.01	-2.89 -2.89	-3.61 1.34 1.34 .01 93	-3.61 1.66 -2.88 -4.83
KIN b 1 SNA OEI TOT	. 99 . 22	. 22 . 82	.62 .6268 .68 .78	۰ ۲ ۲ ۰ ۲ ۲ ۰ ۲ ۲ ۰ ۲ ۲
KIN SNA OEI TOT	.88 .76	. ĉ j . t d	. & č . & č . č . & č . & č	• 6 k • 27k • K k • K k
Li ₂ KIN SNA OEI TOT	-1.63 -1.28	-2.32 -2.62	-1.57 .99 12 .39	-1. 57 .98 -2.84 -3.51

Figure 3. (Continued)

•

	_			- Cuasi-	QuesiSharing			
		PRH	<u> </u>	Classical	Penetration	Intericrence		
Ĩi	K18 - MA - 11 - 211	0.66 -1.04 -32 -0.7	د کی ان میں در میں در میں ج		1.72 1,72		1.04 -1.04 2.04 1.05	
	KIN SAA CEI TCI			-1.13 -1.15	-2.81 -2.81	-3.34 .44 -0.03 0.42	-1.34 0.73 -2.84 -3.45	
LI ₂	KIK SNA LLI	1.32 -2.0 (.6), -0.14	0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00	-1.15 -1.15	0.03 (.03	-1•34 •74 0•94 -0•03 0•52	-0.02 -1.35 1.24 -0.14	

alaolia many manipicala

VALEAR ARCKOR FEDRALS

		VAC Expansio	tn	Cverlap Integrals			
<u>Crbital</u>	13	<u> </u>	2 ? ø	1	<u>b</u>	<u>l</u>	
1	0.399984	-n.0056t2	-0.000127	-0.000697	0.090091	0.093992	
ď	0.005554	0.972244	0.233904	0.090091	0.793147	0.350569	
1	-0.001205	-0.233901	0.972260	0.093992	0.350569	0.010164	

DENSITY CONTRIBUTIONS

	۷,	AC Populatio	ns	Inter-Atomic Bond-Orders			
Crbital	p	<u>v</u>	<u>q</u>	i	b	11	
i	2,014186	-0.009577	2.004610	-0.002742	-0.099788	-0,006262	
ъ	0.562744	ु. भ १३ ३24	0.996068	-0.099788	0.557:06	-0.000310	
1	0.000020	-0.000697	-0.000677	-0.006262	-0.000310	0.000000	

EXCHANGE CONTRIBUTIONS TO PAIRFOPULATIONS

Promotion State			Scaring Penetration						
<u>Grbita</u>	(I 11	ntra-Ato b	mic) 1	(I i	ntra-Ato b	mic) l	(I i	nter-Atc	mic) 1
i	2.012	-0.007	0.000	-0.000	0.006	-0.000	0.000	-0.005	-0.001
Ъ	-0.007	1.004	-0.001	0.006	-0.502	0.001	-0.005	0.501	-0.000
1	0.000	-0.001	0.000	-0.000	0.001	-0.000	-0.001	-0.000	0.000

Figure 4. Binding energy decomposition and description of electron distribution for Li₂, BAO approximation

				Promotion			÷	Sharing	
<u>Orbi</u>	tal	15	S 2S 2Pe		Total	Orbital			
15	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.45 -1.00 0.21 -0.35	0.11 -0.13 -0.41 -0.43	0.00 0.00 0.47 0.47	0.43 -0.98 0.24 -0.31	i	KIN SNA OEI TOT	0.08 0.05	
25	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.11 -0.13 -0.41 -0.43	-0.32 1.62 0.01 1.31	0.00 0.00 -0.00 -0.00	-0.07 1.34 -0.85 0.42	ď	KIN SNA OEI TOT	1.64 1.64	
2P#	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.00 0.00 0.47 0.47	0.00 0.00 -0.00 -0.00	0.30 -1.40 -0.00 -1.10	0.30 -1.40 0.93 -0.18	1	KIN SNA OEI TUT	-0.00 -0.00	
Li	KIN NA OEI TOT				0.66 -1.04 0.32 -C.C7	Li	KIN SNA OEI TOT	1.72	

INTER-ATOMIC CONTRIBUTIONS TO BINDING ENERGY

·

		Total			
<u>Li</u> L:	<u>i</u>	Classical	Penetration	Interference	
11	KIN SNA OEI TOT	. 88 . 28	20 20	20 .00 .20 .20 02	
ĺЪ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	04 04	.23 .23	23 .92 2324 22 .63	.92 31 .22 .62
i 1	KIN SNA OEI TOT	. 22 . 22	. 82 . 88	.26 2102 22 .24	.26 21 .22 .25
ъъ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	-1.27 -1.27	-2.83 -2.83	-3.29 1.23 1.23 .21 83	-3.29 1.39 -2.37 -4.75
b 1	KIN SNA OEI TOT	.02 .00	. 96 . 00	.00 .0000 .00 .00	. KC . E2 . 20 . 22
11	KIN SNA OEI TOT	.00 .00	. 20 . 20	. 22 . 23 . 26 . 26	96 93 92 99 90
Li ₂	KIN SNA OEI TOT	-1.15	-2.81 -2.81	-1.34 .94 23 .52	-1.34 .73 -2.84 -3.45

Figure 4. (Continued)

	-	Prom	otion	Cuasi-		ring	fotal
		PRH	PRC	Classical	Penetration	Interference	
Li	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.76 -1.01 0.27 0.03	0.43 -0.52 0.10 0.02		1.67 1.69		1.19 -1.52 2.07 1.74
Bond	HIN SNA CEI TOT			-1.01 -1.01	-2.76 -2.76	-1.56 0.86 0.86 -0.02 0.13	-1.56 0.71 -2.79 -3.64
^{Li} 2	KIN SNA CEI TOT	1.52 -2.02 0.54 0.06	0.86 -1.04 0.20 0.04	-1.01 -1.01	0.63 0.63	-1.56 0.86 -0.02 0.13	0.82 -2.33 1.35 -0.15

BINDING ENERGY FARMINING

VALENCE ATOMIC CREITALS

	1	IAC Expansio	on	Overlap Integrals				
<u>Orbital</u>	13	25	2P o	i	<u>d</u>	1		
i	0.999893	-0.013662	-0.005154	-0.002624	0.076846	0.075849		
б	0.014447	0.976858	0.213401	0.076846	0.754394	0.315428		
1	0.002119	-0.213452	0.976951	0.075849	0.315-28	0.148538		

DENSITY CONTRIBUTIONS

	v.	AC Populatic	ons	Inter-Atomic Bond-Orders					
<u>Orbital</u>	<u> </u>	v	<u>q</u>	1	<u>b</u>	1			
i	2.009760	-0.006810	2.002950	0.002354	-0.088041	-0.000505			
ъ	0.573862	0,423232	0.997095	-0.088041	0.570001	-0.000022			
1	0.000000	-0.000045	-0.000045	-0.000505	-0.000022	0.00000			

EXCHANGE CONTRIBUTIONS TO PAIRPOPULATIONS

	Pro	mction	State		Snaring Penetration					
(Intra-Atomic) Orbital i b l				(1	(Intra-Atomic) i b			(Inter-Atomic) i b 1		
i	2.008	-0.005	0.000	-0.000	0.004	0.000	0.000	-0.004	-0.000	
ъ	-0.005	1.002	-0.000	0.004	-0.501	0.000	-0.004	0.501	0.000	
1	0.000	-0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	-0.000	0.000	0.000	

Figure 5. Binding energy decomposition and description of electron distribution for Li2, BMAO approximation

			Promotion										Sharing
		1	S	2	S	2	Por		Total				Penetration
Orbi	tal	PRH	PRC	PRH	PRC	PRH	PRC	PRH	PRC	TOT	Orbi	tal	
15	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.27 -0.60 0.15 -0.18	0.42 -0.47 0.05 0.00	0.25 -0.28 -0.34 -0.37	-0.00 0.00 -0.05 -0.05	0.00 0.00 0.39 0.39	0.00 0.00 0.07 0.07	0.24 -0.57 0.17 -0.16	0.42 -0.44 0.07 0.04	0.65 -1.01 0.24 -0.12	i	KIN SNA OEI TOT	0.07 0.07
25	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.25 -0.28 -0.34 -0.37	-0.00 0.00 -0.05 -0.05	-0.26 1.34 0.02 1.09	-0.09 0.18 0.00 0.09	0.00 0.00 -0.00 -0.00	0.00 0.00 -0.00 -0.00	0.27 0.74 -0.68 0.33	-0.09 0.16 -0.11 -0.04	0.18 0.90 -0.79 0.29	Ъ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	1.63 1.63
2P o r	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.00 0.00 0.39 0.39	0.00 0.00 0.07 0.07	0.00 0.00 -0.00 -0.00	0.00 0.00 -0.00 -0.00	0.25 -1.18 -0.00 -0.93	0.11 -0.23 -0.00 -0.12	0.25 -1.18 0.78 -0.15	0.11 -0.23 0.15 0.02	0.36 -1.41 0.93 -0.12	1	KIN SNA OEI TOT	-0.00 -0.00
Li	KIN NA OEI TOT							0.76 -1.01 0.27 0.03	0.¼3 -0.52 0.10 0.02	1.19 -1.52 0.38 0.05	Li	KIN SNA OEI TOT	1.69 1.69

			Quasi-	Sha	ring		Total
<u>_Li</u>	L	<u> </u>	Classical	Penetration	Interfere	ence	
1	1	KIN SNA OEI TOT	00 02	. 63 . 86	.22 22 22 22	02	.20 20 02 02
i	ъ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	24 24	.02 .02	.7e 09 02 .56	03	.70 16 .01 .54
1	1	KIN SNA OEI TOT	. C0 . C2	.00 .02	.22 .22 .22 .22	00	90. 90 93. 93.
ъ	Ъ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	94 94	-2.31 -2.31	-2.97 .98 .01 99	•98	-2.97 1.03 -2.80 -4.74
Ъ	1	KIN SNA OEI TOT	. 20 . 00	. 22 . 22	99. 99. 99.	00	. 20 . 00 . 00 . 00
1	1	KIN SNA OEI TOT	.00 .00	. 20 . 20	.00 .00 .00	. ee	. 20 . 22 . 32 . 46

-1.56 .86 -.02

.86

-1.56 .71 -2.79 -3.50

INTER-ATOMIC CONTRIBUTIONS TO BINDING ENERGY

Figure 5. (Continued)

-1.01 -1.01

-2.76 -2.75

KIN SNA Li₂ OEI

			tion ERC	- Cuasi- Classical		ring Interference	Total
Ξe	KIN NA UBI NGT	-7.46 11.90 -2.55 1.90	0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00		1.34 1.34		-7.46 11.90 -1.01 3.44
3D	KIN Slik CAI			-1.67	-2.48	17.55 0303 -0.50	17.55 -19.93 -2.98
	TJT			-1.07	-2.40	-1.01	-3.35
. ² e2	HIN SHA CEI	-14.92 23.00 -5.10	0.00 0.00 0.00	-1.07	0.60	17.55 -9.03 -9.03 -0.50	2.03 3.07 -3.00
	TUT	3.:0	0.00	-1.27	0.00	-1.01	1.52

SINDING LABAGY PRAMITIONING

VALENCE ATCHIC CEBITALS

	ų	AC Expansion	an	Cverlap Integrals					
<u>Crbital</u>	13	25	2 ? ~	11	<u> </u>	<u> </u>			
1	0.986516	0.162752	-0.017940	0.026658	0.115866	0.177652			
1	-0.163621	0.983154	-0.081465	0.115866	0.402467	0.450900			
ď	0.003691	0.083187	0.996527	0.177652	0.450900	0.369155			

DEASITY CONTRIBUTIONS

	Va	AC Populatic	ns	Inter-Atomic Bond-Orders					
<u>Crbital</u>	<u> </u>	v	q	11	11	<u>b</u>			
1	2.016319	-0.025264	1.991055	-0.064077	-0.252653	0.032190			
1	1.869701	-0.183875	1.685826	-7.252653	-0.838421	0.405489			
ъ	0.114658	0.208462	0.323120	0.032190	0.405489	0.053928			

EXCHANGE CONTRIBUTIONS TO PAIRPOPULATIONS

	Promotion State			· <u> </u>		-Snaring	Penetration			
<u>Crbita</u>	(I 1i	ntra-Atc	mic)	(I	ntra-Atc 1	mic)	í [(Inter-Atomic) ib		
1	1.997	-0.001	-0.005	-0.000	0.002	0.004	-0.001	-0.013	0.008	
1	-0.001	1.514	0.072	0.002	-0.036	-0.086	-0.013	-0.138	0.272	
ъ	-0.005	0.072	0.256	0.004	-0.086	-0.201	0.008	0.272	0.003	

Figure 6. Binding energy decomposition and description of electron distribution for Be₂, SAO approximation

				Promotion —			20	Sharing
<u>Orbi</u>	tal	15	25	2P~	Total	Orbi	tal	
15	KIN NA OEI TOT	-3.19 6.90 -2.24 1.47	-2.07 2.24 -4.51 -4.34	0.00 0.00 4.37 4.37	-3.40 7.13 -2.71 1.02	i	KIN SNA OEI TOT	-0.35 -0.35
28	KIN NA OEI TOT	-2.07 2.24 -4.51 -4.34	-4.43 18.17 -3.67 10.07	0.00 0.00 2.23 2.23	-8.35 22.42 -12.67 1.39	l	KIN SNA OEI TOT	0.43 0.43
2P ~	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.00 0.00 4.37 4.37	0.00 0.00 2.23 2.23	4.30 -17.65 -0.81 -14.16	4.30 -17.65 12.84 -0.51	ъ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	1.46 1.46
Be	KIN NA OEI TOT			<u></u>	-7.46 11.90 -2.55 1.90	Ве	KIN SNA OEI TOT	1.54 1.54

INTER-ATOMIC CONTRIBUTIONS TO BINDING ENERGY

	Quasi-	Sh	Total	
Ве Ве	Classical	Penetration	Interference	
KIN SNA OEI TUT	22 20	. e1 . e1	.57 28 21	.57 55 21
KIN il SNA UEI TOT	e3 e3	.16 .12	-4.17 -4.17 16 .69	5.63 -5.67 .61 .76
KIN I b SNA UEI TOT	05 25	26 26	-1.00 .43 .23 21 51	- 1. ie . 46 i7 61
KIN SNA OEI TOT	34 34	1.13 1.13	20.72 -10.00 -26 -30	22.72 -28.49 .36 1.29
KIN L b SNA UEI TOT	59 59	-1.78 -1.73	-6.58 5.47 .52 .01 69	-6.63 5.42 -1.73 -3.26
KIN SNA UEI TOT	19 19	14 14	24 13 12 32	24 45 17 00
KIN Be ₂ OEI TOT	-1.37	-2.43 -2.43	17.55 -9.03 -9.03 50 -1.01	17.55 -19.93 -2.98 -5.36

Figure 6. (Continued)

	-		rion	Quasi- Classical		ring Interference	Total
Зө	KIN NA JEI TJT	-11.14 18.48 -4.19 3.10	0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00		1.01		-11.14 18.40 -3.18 4.17
≥on⊅	KIN SNA JEI TJT			-2.02 -2.02	-2.37 -2.37	25.56 -13.64: -13.64 -0.70 -2.40	25.50 -29.30 -3.07 -6.79
^{Зе} 2	KIN SNA CEI TCT	-22.28 36.96 -8.30 6.32	0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00	-2.02 -2.02	-0.3h -0.3b	25.58 -13.64 -13.64 -0.70 -2.40	3.30 7.66 ~9.43 1.55

SINDING ELENGY FARMITIONING

VALENCE ATCMIC CEPITALS

	V	AC Expansio	n	Cverlap Integrals					
Crtital	13	25	2 F o	i	1	<u>b</u>			
i	0.974132	0.223580	-0.022222	0.043624	0.143376	0.208619			
1	-0.224621	0.971684	-0.073320	0.143376	0.402898	0.444780			
ъ	0.005200	0.076-36	G.997061	0.208619	0.444780	0.355059			

DENSITY CONTRIBUTIONS

	V.	AC Populatio	ns	Inter-Atomic Bona-Orders					
Crtital	0	v	C	<u>i</u>	1	<u>b</u>			
i	2.018503	-0.037185	1.981319	-0.102796	-0.314162	0.059165			
1	1.900819	-0.207965	1.692854	-0.314162	-0.847936	0.401794			
Ⴆ	0.114871	0.210956	0.325827	0.059165	0.101794	0.056056			

EXCHANGE CONTRIBUTIONS TO PAIRFOPULATIONS

	Pro	motion	State			-Sharing	Penetratio	n ———		
<u>Crbita</u>	(I 1_i	ntra-Atc	mic) b	(I i	ntra-Ato	(I	(Inter-Atcmic) i l b			
i	1.987	0.000	-0.006	-0.000	0.001	0.003	-0.002	-0.020	0.017	
1	0.000	1.628	0.064	0.001	-0.029	-0.079	-0.020	-0.140	0.267	
ď	-0.006	0.064	0.267	0.003	-0.079	-0.212	0,017	0.267	0.003	

Figure 7. Binding energy decomposition and description of electron distribution for Be_2 , BAU approximation

				·····	Sharing			
Orbital		15	25	2Por	Total	Orbital		
15	KIN NA OEI TOT	-6.15 13.34 -3.99 3.21	-2.57 2.79 -4.44 -4.22	0.00 0.00 4.26 4.26	-6.66 13.90 -4.89 2.35	i	KIN SNA OEI TOT	-0.62 -0.62
25	KIN NA OEI TOT	-2.57 2.79 -4.144 -4.22	-4.01 16.94 -3.53 9.41	0.00 0.00 2.27 2.27	-8.63 21.96 -11.98 1.35	l	KIN SNA OEI TOT	0.18 0.13
2Pø	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.00 0.00 4.25 4.26	0.00 0.00 2.27 2.27	4.15 -17.38 -0.85 -14.07	4.15 -17.38 12.68 -0.54	Ъ	KIN SNA JEI TOT	1. ¹ 45 1.45
Be	KIN NA OEI TOT				-11.14 18.48 -4.19 3.16	Бе	KIN SNA UEI TUT	1.01

INTER-ATOMIC CONTRIBUTIONS TO BINDING ENERGY

			Quasi	Sh	aring —	Total
Be	Be		Classical	Penetration	Interference	
ī	i	KIN SNA OEI TOT	00 00	. 22 . 02	72 24 24 07	1.42 -1.45 £2 £5
i	1	KIN SNA OEI TOT	05 05	.16 .16	-6.61 -1.78 15 .30	8.84 -8.43 .21 .41
i	Ъ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	07 07	12 12	-2.03 1.30 21 69	-2.03 1.29 13 87
1	1	KIN SNA OEI TOT	39 39	1.14 1.14	26.14 -13.74 -13.74 27 -1.61	26.14 -27.86 .87 85
1	Ъ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	60 60	-1.73 -1.73	-7.79 7.51 .48 62 .18	-7.79 7.39 -1.75 -2.15
Ъ	Ъ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	21 21	14 14	14 14 02 32	67
В	⁸ 2	KIN SNA OEI TOT	-2.02 -2.02	-2.37 -2.37	25.58 -13.64 -13.64 70 -2.46	25.58 -29.30 -3.67 -6.79

Figure 7. (Continued)

ىر

	-	Prom	otion ———	Quasi-		ring —	Total
		PRI	FRC	Classical	Penetration	<u>Interference</u>	
"∶e	KIN LA OEI TOT	-0.69 6.75 -2.22 3.54	1.33 -2.50 1.35 0.12		0.63 0.63		0.65 4.19 -0.24 4.60
11 J	STA DEI TOT			-1.98 -1.98	-1.25 -1.28	4.19 -3.51 -3.51 -1.50 -4.54	4.19 -).10 -2.78 -7.70
2 ^{9د}	KIN 53A 021 704	-1.33 13.50 -4.44 7.58	2.66 -5.12 2.70 0.24	-1.53 -1.58	-0.01 -0.01	4.19 -3.01 -3.61 -1.50 -4.54	5.47 -0.72 -3.25 1.50

BINDING ERERGY PARTITIONING

VALENCE ATCHIC ORBITALS

		VAC Expansio	n	Cverlap Integrals					
<u>Crbital</u>	<u>l</u> j	23	2F o	1	1	b			
i	0.958675	-0.2844.54	0.005251	0.008697	-0.087194	-0.035734			
1	0.284400	0.957672	-0.044-513	-0.087194	0.474305	0.406030			
ď	0.007633	0.044167	0.995995	-0.035734	c.406030	0.366489			

DENSITY CONTRIBUTIONS

	v.	AC Populatic	ns	Inter-Atomic Bond-Orders					
<u>Orbital</u>			q	i	1	b			
i	1.998169	-0.012324	1.985845	-0.019420	0.191204	-0.126391			
1	2.156202	-0.395455	1.760748	0.191204	-1.099352	0.351316			
ъ	0.083414	0.163993	0.253408	-0.126391	0.351316	0.045928			

EXCHANGE CONTRIBUTIONS TO PAIRPOPULATIONS

	Promotion State (Intra-Atomic) 1 1 b				<u>.</u>	-Snaring	Penetration			
Orbital				(I i	ntra-Ato 1	mic) b				
i	1.980	0.001	0.005	-0.000	0.000	-0.005	-0.000	-0.007	0.012	
1	0.001	1.789	-0.029	0.000	-0.001	0.013	-0.007	-0.228	0.222	
ъ	0.005	-0.029	0.278	-0.005	0.013	-0.244	0.012	0.222	0.002	

Figure 8. Binding energy decomposition and description of electron distribution for Be₂, BMAO approximation

		Promotion									Sharin		
		1	S	2	s	2	Per		Total				Penetration
<u>Orbi</u>	tal	PRH	PRC	PRH	PRC	PRH	PRC	PRH	PRC	TOT	Orbi	tal	
15	KIN NA OEI TOT	-6.00 13.02 -3.44 3.59	-0.04 0.04 -0.01 -0.00	2,55 -2.77 -2.65 -2.87	0.01 -0.01 0.03 0.03	0.00 0.00 3.25 3.25	0.00 0.00 0.57 0.57	-5.35 12.32 -4.13 2.83	-0.05 0.05 -0.01 -0.01	-5.40 12.36 -4.14 2.83	i	KIN SNA OEI TOT	-0.55 -0.55
25	KIN NA OEI TOT	2.55 -2.77 -2.65 -2.87	0.01 -0.01 0.03 0.03	-2.98 12.62 -3.22 6.41	0.11 -0.19 0.01 -0.07	0.00 0.00 2.19 2.19	0.00 0.00 0.17 0.17	1.47 7.78 -8.16 1.09	0.13 -0.20 0.08 0.00	1.60 7.58 -8.08 1.10	l	KIN SNA OEI TOT	-0.26 -0.26
2Pơ	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.00 0.00 3.25 3.25	0.00 0.00 0.57 0.57	0.00 0.00 2.19 2.19	0.00 0.00 0.17 0.17	3.19 -13.34 -1.13 -11.28	1.25 -2.41 -0.20 -1.35	3.19 -13.34 10.07 -0.09	1.25 -2. ¹ 41 1.28 0.13	4.44 -13.75 11.35 0.04	Ъ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	1.45 1.45
Ве	KIN NA OEI TOT							-0.69 6.75 -2.22 3.84	1.33 -2.56 1.35 0.12	0.65 4.19 -0.87 3.96	Be	KIN SNA OEI TOT	0.63 0.63

			Quasi-	Sh	aring	Total	
Be	Be		Classical	Penetration	Interference		
i	1	KIN SNA OEI TOT	01 01	. ७२ . ७४	. 46 67 4 11	15 13 12	
1	1	KIN SNA OEI TOT	10 12	. 26 . 86	3.26 -5.21 .16 57 -2.41	3.2× -5.21 52 -2.52	
i	ď	KIN SNA OEI TOT	25 25	63 68	81 3.294 22 2.42	51 3.2k 1k 2.29	
1	1	KIN SNA OEI TOT	70 70	1.74 1.74	3.22 -1.23 -1.23 26 .51	3.22 -3.15 1.49 1.55	
ı	Ъ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	40 40	-1.43 -1.43	-1.86 -1.12 .72 -2.26	-1.86 20 -1.43 -4.29	

INTER-ATOMIC CONTRIBUTIONS TO BINDING ENERGY

b b	KIN SNA OEI TOT	07 07	12 12	26 26 22 32	17 20 14 50
Be ₂	KIN SNA OEI TOT	-1.38 -1.88	-1.23 -1.28	4.19 -3.61 -3.61 -1.56 -4.54	4.19 -9.12 -2.78 -7.74

Figure 8. (Continued)

	_		tion —	Quasi-		ring	Jotal
		PRH	PRC	Classical	Penetration	Interforence	
С	KIN NA OEI TOT	-1.31 3.61 3.81 6.12	0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00		12.73 12.73		-1.31 3.61 10.54 18.85
Bond	KIN SNA OEI TOT			-1.85 -1.85	-15.78 -15.78	-17.08 -0.05 -0.05 -1.38 -19.37	-17.88 -1.95 -17.17 -37.00
°2	KIN SNA OEI TOT	-2.62 7.22 7.62 12.23	0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00	- 1.85 -1.85	9.69 9.69	-17.88 -0.05 -0.05 -1.38 -19.37	-20.50 5.27 15.93 0.70

BINDING ENERGY PARTITIONING

VALENCE ATOMIC ORBITALS

	V	AO Expansio	on	Cverlap Integrals					
<u>Orbital</u>	13	23	2.Per	i	11	<u>b</u>	π		
1	0.999963	0.002605	-0.008241	-0.001224	0.045482	0.106141	С		
1	-0.003638	0.991772	-0.127968	0.045482	0.368105	0.458548	0		
Ъ	0.007839	0.127993	0.991744	0.106141	0.458548	0.423028	0		
π	(Unhybridize	1)	O	0	0	0.316034		

DENSITY CONTRIBUTIONS

	V.	AO Populatio	ns	Inter-Atomic Bond-Orders						
<u>Orbital</u>	<u> </u>	v	<u>a</u>	i	11	<u>b</u>	π			
i	2.011353	-0.008422	2.002931	-0.001270	-0.098251	-0.037259	0			
1	1.651663	-0.066011	1.585653	-0.098251	-0.751039	0.468696	0			
ъ	0.168513	0.242903	0.411416	-0.037259	0.468696	0.075499	0			
π	0.759858	0.240141	1.000000	0	0	0	0.759858			

EXCHANGE CONTRIBUTIONS TO PAIRPOPULATIONS

		Promotio	on Sta	te ——-			Sr	naring	Penetrat:	ion —		
<u>Orbital</u>	<u> </u>	(Intra- 1	-Atomic b) π	1	(Intra	Atomic) 	(Inter-Atomic) i l b T			
i	2,008	-0.001	-0.002	-0.002	0.000	0.001	0.001	0.002	0.000	-0.002	-0.003	0
1	-0.001	1.398	0.041	0.074	0.001	-0.034	-0.049	-0.074	-0.002	-0.095	0.326	0
ъ	-0.002	0.041	0.158	0.107	0.001	-0.049	-0.071	-0.107	-0.003	0.326	0.010	0
π	-0.002	0.074	0.107	0.660	0.002	-0.074	-0.107	-0.160	0	0	0	0.500
Ŧĩ	-0.002	0.074	0.107	0.160	0.002	-0.074	-0.107	-0.160	0	0	0	0

Figure 9. Binding energy decomposition and description of electron distribution for C_2 , SAO approximation

				Pro	omot ion -				כו	Sharing
<u>Orbi</u>	tal	15	25	2P o	2P11	2P77	Total	0rbit	al	
1.8	KIN NA OEI TOT	1.25 -2.63 0.29 -1.09	0.01 -0.01 -9.38 -9.38	0.00 0.00 9.47 9.47	0.00 0.00 0.08 0.08	0.00 0.00 0.08 0.08	1.25 -2.63 0.72 -0.66	1	KIN SNA OEI FOT	0.06 0.06
28	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.01 -0.01 -9.38 -9.38	-18.05 63.40 -6.43 38.91	0.00 0.00 4.75 4.75	0.00 0.00 -3.69 -3.69	0.00 0.00 -3.69 -3.69	-18.03 63.37 -41.39 3.95	1	KIN SNA DEI FOT	1.94 1.94
2Pə	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.00 0.00 9.47 9.47	0.00 0.00 4.75 4.75	15.47 -57.13 0.06 -41.60	0.00 0.00 2.49 2.49	0.00 0.00 2.49 2.49	15.47 -57.13 39.75 -1.91	b	KIN SNA DEI FOT	2.69 2.69
2P r	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.00 0.00 0.08 0.08	0.00 0.00 -3.69 -3.69	0.00 0.00 2.49 2.49	0.00 0.00 3.44 3.44	0.00 0.00 -1.07 -1.07	0.00 0.00 2.37 2.37	ן דר נ	KIN SNA DEI FOT	4.02 4.02
2₽ 7	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.00 0.00 0.08 0.08	0.00 0.00 -3.69 -3.69	0.00 0.00 2.49 2.49	0.00 0.00 -1.07 -1.07	0.00 0.00 3.144 3.444	0.00 0.00 2.37 2.37	ı S TT	(IN SNA DEI FOT	4.02 4.02
С	KIN NA OEI TOT						-1.31 3.61 3.81 6.12	C C	IN SNA DEI COT	12.73 12.73

.

		Quasi-	Sh	aring	Total	
<u> </u>		Classical	Penetration	Interference		
11	KIN SNA OEI TOT	.00 .00	00 00	00 .00 20 30	00 . 20 00 00	
i 1	KIN SNA OEI TOT	03 03	.03 .03	2.20 4816 04 1.52	2.20 67 01 1.51	
i b	KIN SNA OEI TOT	05 05	.04 .04	1.86 5308 01 1.24	1.86 66 .23 1.23	
iΠ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	.00 .00	.02 .20	.40 04 02 04	. ČC Č3 . ČC Č3	
11	KIN SNA OEI TOT	.06 .06	1.69 1.69	-7.73 -7.73 61 5.54	21.62 -15.40 1.03 7.29	
1 b	KIN SNA OEI TOT	-1.14 -1.14	-3.66 -3.66	-12.34 4.85 2.26 .26 -4.96	-12.34 5.98 -3.40 -9.76	
1 11	KIN SNA OEI TOT	•38 •38	.08 .08	.نلا 94 .41 23 75	.00 15 14 29	
ָ ש ל ל	KIN SNA OEI TOT	43 48	43 43	45 3030 .01 -1.03	45 -1.67 42 -1.94	
ъ 1 1	KIN SNA OEI TOT	59 59	07 07	.22 2758 17 81	-1.24 -23 -1.47	
ππ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	.63 .63	-4.94 -4.94	-11.24 2.37 2.37 .23 -6.28	-11.24 5.36 -4.72 -12.62	
ππ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	.30 .30	22 22	.22 1212 24 25	.00 .09 07 .42	
°2	KIA SNA OEI TOT	-1.85	-15.78	-17.88 0505 -1.38 -19.37	-17.88 -1.95 -17.17 -37.00	

Figure 9. (Continued)

	-	Promo	tion	- Quasi-	Sh	aring	Total
		PRH	PRC	Classical	Penetration	Interference	
с	KIN NA OEI TCT	-0.02 3.68 3.25 6.21	0.C0 0.C0 0.C0 0.C0		12.50 12.50		-0.92 3.88 15.75 18.71
Bond	KIN SNA CEI TOT			-1.99 -1-99	-15.86 -15.86	-17.12 0.14 0.14 -1.47 -18.31	-17.12 -1.71 -17.33 -36.16
°2	KIN SNA UEI TOT	-1.84 7.76 6.50 12.42	0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00	-1.99 -1.99	9•14 9•14	-17.12 0.14 0.14 -1.47 -18.31	-18.96 6.05 14.17 1.26

BINDING ENERGY PARTITIONING

VALENCE ATCMIC ORBITALS

	·	VAC Expansio	on		<u> </u>	Integrals —	ntegrals		
<u>Orbital</u>	15	25	2.P o r	i	11	Ъ	<u>π</u>		
1	0.999934	-1.007727	-0.008449	-0.002516	0.041364	0.105742	0		
1	0.006582	0.991756	-0.127973	0.041364	0.371707	0.476079	0		
ъ	0.009368	0.127909	0.991742	0.105742	0.476079	0.412981	0		
π		(Unnybridized	1)	0	0	0	0.338306		

DENSITY CONTRIBUTIONS

	V.	AO Populatic	ons ———				
Orbital	p	v	q	i	<u>1</u>	ъ	<u>î</u>
i	2.011271	-0.008080	2.003190	0.001457	-0.090255	-0.041078	0
1	1.629865	-0.059478	1.570387	-0.090255	-0.753142	0.470938	0
ъ	0.173896	0.252526	0.426422	-0.041078	0.470938	0.079098	0
π	0.747213	0.252787	1.000000	0	0	0	0.747213

EXCHANGE CONTRIBUTIONS TO PAIRPOPULATIONS

	Promotion State												
<u>Orbital</u>	. 1	(Intra- 1	Atomic) π	i	(Intra	Atomic) π	(Inter-Atomic) ib 11				
i	2.009	-0.001	-0.001	-0.002	0.000	0.001	0.001	0.002	0.000	-0.002	-0.003	0	
1	-0.001	1.377	0.043	0.076	0.001	-0.036	-0.052	-0.076	-0.002	-0.095	0.335	0	
ъ	-0.001	0.043	0.168	0.109	0.001	-0.052	-0.074	-0.109	-0.003	0.335	0.010	0	
π	-0.002	0.076	0.109	0.659	0.002	-0.076	-0.109	-0.159	0	0	0	0.500	
$\overline{\mathbf{n}}$	-0.002	0.076	0.109	0.159	0.002	-0.076	-0.109	-0.159	0	0	0	0	

Figure 10. Binding energy decomposition and description of electron distribution for C_2 , BAO approximation

			<u> </u>	Pr	omotion					Sharing
<u>Orbi</u>	tal	18	25	2Pd	2P <i>m</i>	2P7	Total	Orbi	P. tal	enetration
13	KIN NA OEI TOT	1.33 -2.81 0.37 -1.11	0.53 -0.56 -9.57 -9.60	0.00 0.00 9.45 9.45	0.00 0.00 0.08 0.08	0.00 0.00 0.08 0.08	1.32 -2.80 0.80 -0.68	i	KIN SNA OEI TOT	0•07 0•07
28	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.53 -0.56 -9.57 -9.60	-18.20 64.80 -6.54 40.06	0.00 0.00 4.76 14.76	0.00 0.00 -3.72 -3.72	0.00 0.00 -3.72 -3.72	-17.13 63.67 -42.07 4.47	1	KIN SNA OEI TOT	1.98 1.98
2.P#	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.00 0.00 9.45 9.45	0.00 0.00 4.76 4.76	14.89 -56.98 0.08 -42.01	0.00 0.00 2.49 2.49	0.00 0.00 2.49 2.49	14.89 -56.98 39.83 -2.26	Ъ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	2.68 2.68
2₽ n	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.00 0.00 0.08 0.08	0.00 0.00 -3.72 -3.72	0.00 0.00 2.49 2.49	0.00 0.00 3.36 3.36	0.00 0.00 -1.02 -1.02	0.00 0.00 2.34 2.34	T	KIN SNA OEI TOT	3.88 3.88
2.P 7	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.00 0.00 0.08 0.08	0.00 0.00 -3.72 -3.72	0.00 0.00 2.149 2.149	0.00 0.00 -1.02 -1.02	0.00 0.00 3.36 3.36	0.00 0.00 2.34 2.34	\overline{n}	KIN SNA OET TOT	3.88 3.88
C	KIN NA OEI TOT						-0.92 3.88 3.25 6.21	C	KIN SNA OEI TOT	12.50 12.50

INTRA-ATOMIC CONTRIBUTION TO BINDING ENERGY

Figure 10. (Continued)

		Quasi-	Sh	aring	Total		
СС		Classical	Penetration	Interference			
	KIN			. 20	- 40		
	SNA	00		- 88 - 88	- 0,0		
11	OEI	• 00	- 90	- 26	- 00		
	TOT	- 22		- 90	- 20		
		00	00	• • • •	•••		
	KIN			1.82	1.32		
i l	ONA	23		1813	34		
	D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D		. 22	04	62		
	101	03	.02	1.47	1.40		
	KIN			2.22	2.02		
1 b	SNA	06		4469	58		
	OEI		• 04	21	.23		
	TOT	06	.04	1.48	1.47		
	KIN			. it	. 20		
. π [.]	SNA	2.0		- 23 - 22	03		
1 4	OEI		. 22	62	. 66		
	TOT	. 20	. CC	£3	03		
	KTN			-20 VA	20.04		
	SNA	0.0		-6 86 -5 86	-13.65		
11	OEI	.68	1 7 1	- 61	1.10		
	TOT	.28	1.71	5.76	7.49		
	KTN			11.60	-11 62		
	SNA			-11.02	-11.02		
1 Ъ	OFT	-1.21		4.20 2.10	-3 40		
	TOT	-1.21	-3.74	-4.97	-9.93		
	VTN			24	20		
	STA			• 66	• UU		
1Π	OFT	.41		95 .41	10		
	TOT		. 08	23	12		
	101	.41	• 28	//	20		
	KIN			- . 30	30		
ъъ	SNA	- 57		- 38 - 38	-1.32		
00	OEI	•••	- 44	. 61	43		
	TOT	57	- 44	-1.04	-2,05		
	KIN			2.2	. 20		
ب ر ير	SNA	65			-1.31		
οπ	OEI	• • • •	2.7	- 18	- 24		
	TOT	65	- 07	84	-1.56		
	KIN			-16 65	-10.65		
مدبہ	SNA	60		2.25 2.25	5,19		
нπ	OEI	.09	-4 90	. 22	-4.68		
	TOT	.69	-4.90	-5.92	-10.13		
	KTN			116	20		
=	SNA	77		- 10 - 10	_ 1.3		
ηπ	OET	• 00	- 02	10 .10	07		
	TOT	.33	02	26	. K5		
				· ···· ·			
	KIN			-17.12	-17.12		
C_	SNA	-1.99		.14 .14	-1.71		
-2	OEI		-15.86	-1.47	-17.33		
	TOT	-1.99	-15.86	-is.Ji	-30,10		
gur	e 10.	(Continu	(ber				

•

INTER-ATOMIC CONTRIBUTIONS TO BINDING ENERGY

	-	PRH Prom	otion	- Quasi- Classical	Penetration	aring Interforence	lotal
С	KIN NA OEI TOT	-31.37 49.80 -5.11 13.32	13.02 -22.15 9.75 0.61		9.82 9.82		-18.35 27.65 14.46 23.75
Bond	kin SNA OEI Tot			-1.28 -1.28	-13.27 -13.27	¹⁴⁰ •55 -35•39 -35•39 -2•15 -32•38	40.55 -72.07 -15.41 -46.93
с ₂	KIN SNA OEI TOT	-62.7!; 99.60 -10.22 26.6!;	26.04 -44.30 19.50 1.22	-1.28 -1.28	6•38 6•38	40.55 -35.39 -35.39 -2.15 -32.38	3.85 -16.77 13.51 0.58

BINDING ENERGY PARTIPIONING

VALENCE ATCMIC CRBITALS

	V	AC Expansi	on		— Cverlap	Integrals —	
<u>Orbital</u>	15	25	2 P a	<u>i</u>	1	<u>ه</u>	
i	0.971602	0.234768	-0.029554	0.045591	0.143532	0.160455	0
l	-0.236228	0.969018	-0.071786	0.143532	0.379011	0.340976	0
ъ	0.011786	0.076732	0.996982	0.160455	0.340976	0.359155	0
π	(Unhybridize	1)	0	0	0	0.322570

DENSITY CONTRIBUTIONS

	V.	AC Populatio	ons		Inter-Atomic	Bond-Orders	·
<u>Crbital</u>	<u> </u>	V	q	<u>1</u>	<u>l</u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>
i	2.015397	-0.037306	1.978090	-0.106236	-0.318238	0.082356	0
1	1.909059	-0.210281	1.698778	-0.318238	-0.827285	0.436824	0
ъ	0.135546	0.187586	0.323132	0.082356	0.436824	0.065335	0
π	0.756104	0.243896	1.000000	0	0	0	0.756104

EXCHANGE CONTRIBUTIONS TO PAIRPOPULATIONS

	H	promotio	on Stat	te		Snaring Penetration						
<u>Orbital</u>	L <u>1</u>	(Intra-	Atomic)) π	<u> </u>	(Intra	Atomic) 11	1	(Inter-	Atomic)	π
i	1.980	0.002	-0.002	-0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	-0.002	-0.019	0.019	0
1	0.002	1.600	0.015	0.041	0.000	-0.010	-0.023	-0.041	-0.019	-0.120	0.254	0
ъ	-0.002	0.015	0.110	0.100	0.000	-0.023	-0.056	-0.100	0.019	0.254	0.006	0
π	-0.000	0.041	0.100	0.679	0.000	-0.041	-0.100	-0.179	0	0	0	0.500
$\overline{\mathbf{n}}$	-0.000	0.041	0.100	0.179	0.000	-0.041	-0.100	-0.179	0	0	0	о

Figure 11.	Binding energy	decomposition	and description of	
	electron distri	bution for C2	, BMAO approximation	

		 ר	s	2	S		 PP~	Promoti	on	2	₽ <i>₩</i>		Total			μ	Sharing enetration
<u>0rb:</u> [tal	PRH	PRC	PRH	PRC	PRH	PRC	PRH	PRC	PRH	PRC	PRH	PRC	TOT	Orbi	tal	
15	KIN- NA OEI TOT	16.52 34.94 -6.72 11.70	0.36 -0.38 -0.06 -0.08	-7.01 7.41 -7.40 -7.00	-0.17 0.18 0.53 0.53	0.00 0.00 6.39 6.89	0.00 0.00 1.72 1.72	0.00 0.00 -0.40 -0.40	0.00 0.00 0.51 0.51	0.00 0.00 -0.40 -0.40	0.00 0.00 0.51 0.51	-18.11 36.63 -10.05 8.47	0.33 -0.36 -0.03 -0.06	-17.78 36.27 -10.07 8.1/1	i	KIN SNA OEI TOT	-1.18 -1.18
28	KIN NA OEI TOT	-7.01 7.41 -7.40 -7.00	-0.17 0.18 0.53 0.53	-11.93 42.48 -5.09 25.47	3.06 -4.62 0.09 -1.47	0.00 0.00 4.10 4.10	0.00 0.00 0.148 0.48	0.00 0.00 -2.35 -2.35	0.00 0.00 0.24 0.24	0.00 0.00 -2.35 -2.35	0.00 0.00 0.24 0.24	-24.35 55.62 1-28.42 2.85	2.75 -4.30 1.62 0.08	-21.60 51.32 -26.80 2.93	1	KIN SNA OEI TOT	0•35 0•35
2Pe'	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.00 0.00 6.89 6.39	0.00 0.00 1.72 1.72	0.00 0.00 4.10 4.10	0.00 0.00 0.48 0.43	11.07 -42.45 -0.14 -31.50	6.48 -10.98 -0.02 -4.52	0.00 0.00 1.71 1.71	0.00 0.00 0.21 0.21	0.00 0.00 1.71 1.71	0.00 0.00 0.21 0.21	11.09 -42.45 29.54 -1.82	6.48 -10.98 5.07 0.5	17.57 -53.42 -4.61 1.24	ъ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	2.51 2.51
2P#/	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.00 0.00 -0.40 -0.40	0.00 0.00 0.51 0.51	0.00 0.00 -2.35 -2.35	0.00 0.00 0.24 0.24	0.00 0.00 1.71 1.71	0.00 0.00 0.21 0.21	0.00 0.00 3.08 3.08	1.73 -3.26 0.05 -1.49	0.00 0.00 -1.18 -1.18	0.00 0.00 0.15 0.15	0.00 0.00 1.91 1.91	1.7 -3.2 1.5 0.0	1.73 3.26 3.45 1.91	π	KIN SNA OEI TOT	4.08 4.08
2Pi7	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.00 0.00 -0.lt0 -0.lt0	0.00 0.00 0.51 0.51	0.00 0.00 -2.35 -2.35	0.00 0.00 0.24 0.24	0.00 0.00 1.71 1.71	0.00 0.00 0.21 0.21	0.00 0.00 -1.18 -1.18	0.00 0.00 0.15 0.15	0.00 0.00 3.08 3.08	1.73 -3.26 0.05 -1.49	0.00 0.00 1.91 1.91	1.73 -3.26 1.54 0.01	1.73 -3.26 3.45 1.91	त्ते	KIN SNA OEI TOT	4.08 4.08
c	KIN NA OEI TOT											-31.37 49.80 -5.11 13.32	13.02 -22.15 9.75 0.61	-18.35 27.65 4.63 13.93	C	KIN SNA OEI TOT	9.82 9.82

.

INTRA-ATOMIC CONTRIBUTION TO BINDING ENERGY

Figure 11. (Continued)

		Quasi-		aring —	Total
<u> </u>		Classical	Penetration	Interference	
i i	KIN SNA OEI TOT	00 02	.23 .23	3.52 -1.97 26 49	3.52 -3.95 03 46
11	KIN SNA UEI TOT	07 07	.32 .36	21.75 -16.51 -5.53 26 61	21.75 -22.17 .04 38
ib	KIN SNA OEI TOT	08 08	22 22	-5.39 3.31 .34 01 -1.24	-5.39 4.08 23 -1.54
1 T	KIN SNA OEI TOT	. C 4 . C 4	.62 .02	.20 15 01 11	. 68 66 . 61 65
11	KIN SNA OEI TOT	73 73	1.96 1.96	72.43 -39.32 -39.32 79 -8.96	72.48 -79.37 1.17 -7.73
1 b	KIN SNA OEI TOT	69 69	-2.84 -2.84	-21.43 18.99 2.37 .21 .14	-21.43 20.67 -2.63 -3.39
1 M	KIN SNA OEI TOT	.15	•13 •13	.00 -1.07 24 73	.60 33 12 45
ЪЪ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	13 13	34 34	-1.17 2323 .1 -1.23	-1.17 19 33 -1.69
ъπ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	35 35	05 05		.62 - 79 - 16 - 95
ππ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	.64 .64	-4.86 -4.86	-11.27 2.37 2.37 .13 -5.14	-11.67 5.39 -4.68 -16.36
ከ፹	KIN SNA OEI TOT	.31 .31	82 82	.60 10 24 25	.22 .12 27 .23
°2	KIN SNA OEI TOT	-1.28	-13.27	40.55 -35.39 -35.39 -2.15 -32.35	46.55 -72.27 -15.41 -46.93

Figure 11. (Continued)

1	0	0

dikolks Ekendy FanfifionIN	an fi fioh i N	FARTI	ELENGY	91:01:3
----------------------------	----------------	-------	--------	---------

	-	PRH rome	PRC	- Quasi- <u>Classical</u>		ring Interference	Total
1.	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.62 0.17 7.35 8.14	0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00	_	14.08 14.08		0.62 0.17 21.43 22.22
Fond	KIN SHA CEI TOT			-5.62 -5.62	-20.24 -20.24	-33.39 7.81 7.81 -1.98 -19.75	-33•39 9•99 -22•22 -45•62
^N 2	KIN SNA OEI TOT	1.21 0.31 1170 16.29	0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00	-5.62 -5.62	7.93 7.93	-33.39 7.81 7.81 -1.98 -19.75	-32.15 10.34 20.65 -1.16

VALENCE ATCMIC CREITALS

		AO Expansio	on ———				
<u>Crbital</u>	15	25	2.P o	i	1	<u> </u>	π
i	0.962047	-0.251559	0.105749	0.001108	-0.019294	0.002251	0
1	0.271464	0.842797	-0.464759	-0.019294	0.052811	0.302377	0
ъ	0.027789	0.475828	0.879099	0.002251	0.302377	0.716894	0
π		(Unnybridized	3)	0	0	0	0.282041

DENSITY CONTRIBUTIONS

	V.	AC Populatic	ns	Inter-Atomic Bond-Crders					
Orbital	<u>q</u>	<u>v</u>	q	<u>i</u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	π		
i	2.000744	-0.000784	1.999961	-0.002177	0.039370	-0.009554	0		
1	2.161576	-0.115817	2.045759	0.039370	-0.159915	-0.352581	0		
ъ	0.640336	0.313944	0.954280	-0.009554	-0.352581	0.586667	0		
٦r	0.780006	0.219394	1.000000	0	0	0	0.780006		

EXCHANGE CONTRIBUTIONS TO PAIRPOPULATIONS

	Promotion State				Snaring Penetration								
<u>Crbital</u>	1	(Intra-	-Atomic) <u>1</u> 7	<u>1</u>	(Intra- 1	-Atomic b) <u> </u>	<u>1</u>	(Inter	-Atomic)		
i	2.000	0.000	-0.000	-0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	-0.000	0.000	0	
1	0.000	2.128	-0.034	-0.024	0.000	-0.003	0.022	0.024	-0.000	-0.004	-0.062	0	
Ъ	-0.000	-0.034	0.662	0.163	0.000	0.022	-0.147	-0.163	0.000	-0.062	0.514	0	
π	-0.000	-0.024	0.163	0.681	0.000	0.024	-0.163	-0.181	0	0	0	0.500	
$\overline{\pi}$	-0.000	-0.024	0.163	0.181	0.000	0.024	-0.163	-0.181	0	0	0	0	

Figure 12. Binding energy decomposition and description of electron distribution for N_2 , SAO approximation

	PromotionPromotion									Sharing
<u>Orbi</u>	tal	15	28	2P ơ	2Pm	2PT	Total	Orbi	۲ tal	enetration
15	KIN NA OEI TOT	1.54 -3.23 -0.24 -1.92	0.55 -0.57 -5.00 -5.02	0.00 0.00 5.41 5.41	0.00 0.00 0.09 0.09	0.00 0.00 0.09 0.09	1.53 -3.21 0.30 -1.38	1.	KIN SNA OEI TOT	-0.02 -0.02
25	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.55 -0.57 -5.00 -5.02	-12.45 41.99 -2.07 27.48	0.00 0.00 0.45 0.45	0.00 0.00 -1.83 -1.83	0.00 0.00 -1.83 -1.83	-11.35 40.84 -18.21 11.28	1.	KIN SNA OEI TOT	-0.30 -0.30
2P~	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.00 0.00 5.41 5.41	0.00 0.00 -0.45 -0.45	10.43 -37.46 7.91 -19.11	0.00 0.00 0.92 0.92	0.00 0.00 0.92 0.92	10.43 -37.46 20.19 -6.83	ხ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	4•74 4•74
2P#	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.00 0.00 0.09 0.09	0.00 0.00 -1.83 -1.83	0.00 0.00 0.92 0.92	0.00 -0.00 4.01 4.01	0.00 0.00 -1.48 -1.48	0.00 0.00 2.54 2.54	π	KIN SNA OEI TOT	4.83 4.83
2P. ñ	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.00 0.00 0.09 0.09	0.00 0.00 -1.83 -1.83	0.00 0.00 0.92 0.92	0.00 0.00 -1.48 -1.48	0.00 -0.00 4.01 4.01	0.00 0.00 2.54 2.54	π	KIN SNA OEI TOT	4.83 4.83
N	KIN NA OEI TOT						0.62 0.17 7.35 8.14	N	KIN SNA OEI TOT	14.08 14.08

INTRA-ATOMIC CONTRIBUTION TO BINDING ENERGY

	QuasiSharing				Total
<u>N N</u>		Classical	Penetration	Interference	
ii	KIN SNA OEI TOT	.01 .01	.00 .00	01 02 02 01	. 22 22 20 60
il	KIN SNA OEI TOT	.26 .26	.01 .01	.51 79 63 31	.51 52 22 04
i b	KIN SNA OEI TOT	34 34	.00 .00	.62 1.3361 26 1.15	. 12 . 98 20 . 80
iΠ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	.06 .06	.00 .00	.02 04 .ui 01 05	. 00 . 02 21 . 21
11	KIN SNA OEI TOT	5.96 5.96	•04 •04	.70 14 25 .33	.70 5.69 61 6.39
1 b	KIN SNA OEI TOT	-4.75 -4.75	.96 .96	8.40 2.90 -3.34 13 7.84	8.40 -5.19 .83 4.65
ıπ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	1.49	. 07 . 07	.22 58 .29 61 52	.20 1.60 .06 1.06
ъъ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	-2.37 -2.37	-10.70 -10.70	-20.73 3.98 3.98 .36 -12.41	-20.73 5.59 -10.34 -25.48
ъп	KIN SNA OEI TOT	-1.89 -1.89	07 07	5119 49 -1.19	.00 -2.59 56 -3.15
ηη	KIN SNA OEI TOT	.62 .62	-5.72 -5.72	-15.61 3.27 3.27 .26 -8.30	-15.61 7.16 -5.46 -13.91
ዠ፹	KIN SNA OEI TOT	.28 .28	03 03	.20 1111 24 26	.00 .06 07 01
. ^N 2	KIN SNA OEI TOT	-5.62	-20.24 -20.24	-33.39 7.81 7.81 -1.98 -19.75	-33.39 9.99 -22.22 -45.62

Figure 12. (Continued)

.

	-	PRH	PRC	- Quasi- Classical	Penetration	ring Interference	Total
N	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.97 -0.11 7.14 8.00	0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00		13.78 13.78		0.97 -0.11 20.92 21.78
Bond	KIN SNA OEI TOT			-5.72 -5.72	-19.93 -19.93	-30.54 7.09 7.09 -2.09 -18.45	-30.54 8.45 -22.02 -44.11
^N 2	KIN SNA OEI TOT	1.94 -0.22 14.28 16.00	0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00	-5,72 -5,72	7.62 7.62	-30.54 7.09 7.09 -2.09 -18.45	-28.60 8.23 19.82 -0.55

BINDING ENERGY FAMILIFIONING

VALENCE ATOMIC CRBITALS

	<u> </u>	VAO Expansio	on	Cverlap Integrals				
<u>Orbital</u>	15	25	2P .	<u>1</u>	<u> </u>	<u>b</u>	π	
i	0.964526	-0.245545	0.096936	0.000744	-0.020722	0.002355	0	
1	0.262105	0.846988	-0-462507	-0.020722	0.055738	0.314232	0	
ъ	0.031463	0.471508	0.881300	0.002354	0.314232	0.718822	0	
π	1	(Unnybridized	1)	0	0	0	0.292380	

DENSITY CONTRIBUTIONS

	V/	AO Populatic	ns	Inter-Atomic Bond-Orders					
Orbital	p	v	q	<u>1</u>	1	<u>ь</u>	<u></u> n		
i	2.000854	-0.000904	1.999951	-0.001439	0.042365	-0.010485	0		
1	2.175132	-0.125560	2.049573	0.042366	-0.170810	-0.365484	0		
ъ	0.644000	0.306477	0.950477	-0.010483	-0.366484	0.586602	0		
π	0.773766	0.226234	1.000000	0	0	0	0.773766		

EXCHANGE CONTRIBUTIONS TO PAIRPOPULATIONS

	Promotion State											
<u>Orbital</u>	(Intra-Atomic) Orbital 1 l b π				<u>i</u>	(Intra- 1	Atomic))	(Inter-Atomic) <u>i l b T</u>			<u>11</u>
i	2.000	0.000	-0.000	-0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	-0.000	0.000	0
l	0.000	2.139	-0.037	-0.026	0.000	-0.004	0.024	0.026	-0.000	-0.004	-0.068	0
ъ	-0.000	-0.037	0.662	0.163	0.000	0.024	-0.145	-0.163	0.000	-0.068	0.515	0
π	-0.000	-0.026	0.163	0.682	0.000	0.026	-0.163	-0.182	0	0	0	0.500
\overline{n}	-0.000	-0.026	0.163	0.182	0.000	0.026	-0.163	-0.182	0	0	0	0

Figure 13. Binding energy decomposition and description of electron distribution for N_2 , BAO approximation

.

				Pre		Sharing				
<u>Orbi</u>	tal	15	25	2Per	2P π	2P77	Total	Orbit	۲ 	enetration
18	KIN NA OEI TOT	1.40 -2.95 -0.26 -1.81	0.72 -0.76 -4.76 -4.79	0.00 0.00 5.15 5.15	0.00 0.00 0.08 0.08	0.00 0.00 0.08 0.08	1.39 -2.93 0.25 -1.30	i	KIN SNA OEI TOT	-0.02 -0.02
2.5	KIN NA OEI TOT	0•72 -0•76 -4•76 -4•79	-11.65 40.04 -2.00 26.38	0.00 0.00 -0.41 -0.41	0.00 0.00 -1.71 -1.71	0.00 0.00 -1.71 -1.71	-10.19 38.50 -17.32 10.99	l	KIN S NA OEI TOT	-0•34 -0•34
2P ~	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.00 0.00 5.15 5.15	0.00 0.00 -0.41 -0.41	9•77 -35•68 7•63 -18•28	0.00 0.00 0.85 0.85	0.00 0.00 0.85 0.85	9•77 -35•68 19•27 -6•63	b	KIN SNA OFT FOT	4•63 4•63
2₽ π	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.00 0.00 80.0 80.0	0.00 0.00 -1.71 -1.71	0.00 0.00 0.85 0.85	0.00 0.00 3.93 3.93	0.00 0.00 -1.46 -1.46	0.00 0.00 2.47 2.47	N	KIN SNA OEI FOT	4•75 4•75
2F n	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.00 0.00 0.08 0.08	0.00 0.00 -1.71 -1.71	0.00 0.00 0.85 0.85	0.00 0.00 -1.46 -1.46	0.00 0.00 3.93 3.93	0.00 0.00 2.47 2.47	নি	KIN SNA OEI FOT	4•75 4•75
N	KIN NA OEI TOT						0.97 -0.11 7.14 8.00	N	KIN SNA OEI FOT	13.78 13.78

Figure 13. (Continued)

		Quasi-	Sha	ring	Total
N N		Classical	Penetration	Interference	
1 1	KIN SNA OEI TOT	.01 .01	% %	.80 80 80 61	35. 22 - 20 95.
11	KIN SNA OEI TOT	.24 .24	.61 .21	.58 91 .01 03 36	.53 66 03 11
ib	KIN SNA OEI TOT	34 34	.00 .00	.02 1.4201 21 1.23	.02 1.07 21 .89
iΠ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	.06 .06	.00 .00	.02 24 .20 01 25	.00 .22 01 .01
11	KIN SNA OEI TOT	6.12 6.12	. 04 . 04	.76 1313 5 .45	.76 5.86 61 6.61
1 b	KIN SNA OEI TOT	-4.82 -4.82	1.03 1.03	8.55 3.10 -3.44 13 8.28	8.55 -5.15 .92 4.30
1 M	KIN SNA OEI TOT	1.56 1.56	. 07 . 07	.00 61 .10 01 52	.00 1.05 .06 1.11
ኮ ኮ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	-2.57 -2.57	-12.62 -10.62	-19.05 3.31 3.31 .37 -12.06	-19.05 4.05 -10.26 -25.26
ъπ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	-1.95 -1.95	27 27	.02 5217 50 -1.19	.ÚU -2.63 57 -3.20
ππ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	.64 .64	-5.69 -5.69	-15.27 3.21 3.21 .26 -3.59	-15.27 7.07 -5.43 -13.64
π	KIN SNA OEI TOT	.30 .30	23 03	.00 11 04 27	. 20 . 67 67 62
N2	KIN SNA OEI TOT	-5.72	-19.93 -10.93	-30.54 7.09 -2.09 -18.65	-30.54 8.45 -22.02 -55.11

Figure 13. (Continued)
	-		otion PRC	- Cuasi- Classical		ring- Interference	Potul
N	KIN NA OEI TUT	0.27 0.55 6.52 7.34	20.40 -33.82 14.81 1.38		1: 1:.11		20.67 -33.27 35.11 22.61
Bond	KIN SNA			-4.15		-36.11 6.83 6.83	-30.11 5.51
	TUT			-4.15	-19-49 -19-49	-24.63	-48.27
^N 2	KIN SNA OLI TOT	0.54 1.10 13.04 14.68	40.80 -67.64 29.62 2.76	-4.15 -4.15	8.72 8.72	-36.11 6.83 $6.83-2.19-21.63$	5.23 -57.03 49.19 -2.61

BINDING ENERGY FRAMMING

VALENCE ATOMIC CRBITALS

	Y	VAC Expansio	n		Overlap	Integrals —	
<u>Orbital</u>	15	25	2 P.	<u>i</u>	1	<u> </u>	<u>.</u> T
i	0.979978	-0.190980	0.056302	-0.002912	-0.020331	1.011779	0
1	0.197542	0.897226	-0-3 <i>ai</i> +350	-0.0203-1	0.1.4.5E	ი აიოოგო	0
ъ	0.024906	0.398136	0.916988	0.011779	0.3-144.64	0.620728	0
π		(Unhybridized	1)	0	О	0	0.294928

DENSITY CONTRIBUTIONS

	V.	AC Populatic	ns		Inter-Atomi	c Bona-Craers	
<u>Orbital</u>	p	v	q	<u> </u>	1	b	π
i	2.001121	-0.001102	2.000019	0.005809	0.040510	-0.022196	0
1	2.221433	-0.178223	2.043210	0.040510	-0.429885	-0.336870	c
ъ	0.670319	0.286452	0.956771	-0.022196	-0.336870	0.627142	0
π	0.772244	0.227756	1.000000	0	0	0	0.772244

EXCHANGE CONTRIBUTIONS TO PAIFPOPULATIONS

	!	Promotio	on Sta	te ——	·		Sr	naring	Penetrat	lon —		<u> </u>
<u>Crbital</u>	<u>i</u>	(Intra- 1	Atomic) τ	<u>i</u>	(Intra	Atomic) π	<u>1</u>	(Inter	-Atomic)	π
i	2.000	0.000	-0.000	-0.000	0.000	-0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	-0.000	-0.000	0
1	0.000	2.159	-0.044	-0.036	-0.000	-0.007	0.032	0.036	-0.000	-0.037	-0.059	0
ъ	-0.000	-0.044	0.666	0.167	0.000	0.032	-0.151	-0.167	-0.000	-0.059	0.512	0
π	-0.000	-0.036	0.167	0.684	0.000	0.036	-0.167	-0.184	0	0	0	0.500
\overline{n}	-0.000	-0.036	0.167	0.184	0.000	0.036	-0.167	-0.184	0	0	o	0

Figure 14. Binding energy decomposition and description of electron distribution for N_2 , BMAO approximation

								-Promoti	.on			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					Sharing
Orbi	tal	PRH	LS PRC	PRH 2	2S PRC	PRH	2P~ PRC	PRH 2	P n PRC	PRH 2	PT PRC	PRH	Total PRC	TOT	Orbi	tol 1	enetration
15	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.64 -1.34 -0.26 -0.96	0.83 -0.88 -0.04 -0.09	0.43 -0.45 -3.09 -3.11	-0.00 0.00 -0.16 -0.16	0.00 0.00 3.41 3.41	0.00 0.00 4.90 4.90	0.00 0.00 0.06 0.06	0.00 0.00 -0.10 -0.10	0.00 0.00 0.06 0.06	0.00 0.00 -0.10 -0.10	0.63 -1.33 0.07 -0.63	0.85 -0.88 0.04 0.01	1.48 -2.22 0.11 -0.63	1	KIN SNA OEI TUT	-0.02 -0.02
25	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.43 -0.45 -3.09 -3.11	-0.00 0.00 -0.16 -0.16	-7.69 26.43 -1.54 17.20	-1.09 1.60 -0.06 0.45	0.00 0.00 -0.15 -0.15	0.00 0.00 1.29 1.29	0.00 0.00 -0.96 -0.96	0.00 0.00 -0.06 -0.06	0.00 0.00 -0.96 -0.96	0.00 0.00 -0.06 -0.06	-6.83 25.53 -11.23 7.47	-1.10 1.61 -0.59 -0.09	-7.94 27.14 -11.82 7.38	1	KIN SNA UEI TOT	-0.56 -0.56
2 Pø	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.00 0.00 3.41 3.41	0.00 0.00 4.90 4.90	0.00 0.00 -0.15 -0.15	0.00 0.00 1.29 1.29	6.47 -23.64 6.30 -10.87	21.49 -36.07 0.89 -13.70	0.00 0.00 0.13 0.13	0.00 0.00 0.67 0.67	0.00 0.00 0.13 0.13	0.00 0.00 0.67 0.67	6.47 -23.64 12.93 -4.24	21.49 -36.07 16.10 1.51	27.96 -59.71 29.03 -2.73	b	KIN SNA OEI TOT	5.03 5.03
2P77	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.00 0.00 0.06 0.06	0.00 0.00 -0.10 -0.10	0.00 0.00 -0.96 -0.96	0.00 0.00 -0.06 -0.06	0.00 0.00 0.13 0.13	0.00 0.00 0.67 0.67	0.00 0.00 3.86 3.86	-0.42 0.76 -0.01 0.33	0.00 0.00 -1.49 -1.49	0.00 0.00 -0.03 -0.03	0.00 0.00 2.37 2.37	-0.42 0.76 -0.37 -0.02	-0.42 0.76 2.01 2.35	٦٢	KIN SNA OEI TOT	4.83 4.83
2P 17	KIN NA OEI FOT	0.00 0.00 0.06 0.06	0.00 0.00 -0.10 -0.10	0.00 0.00 -0.96 -0.96	0.00 0.00 -0.06 -0.06	0.00 0.00 0.13 0.13	0.00 0.00 0.67 0.67	0.00 0.00 -1.49 -1.49	0.00 0.00 -0.03 -0.03	0.00 0.00 3.86 3.86	-0.42 0.76 -0.01 0.33	0.00 0.00 2.37 2.37	-0.42 0.76 -0.37 -0.02	-0.42 0.76 2.01 2.35	$\vec{\mathbf{r}}$	KIN SNA OEI TOT	4•83 4•83
N	XIN NA DEI TOT		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·									0.27 0.55 6.52 7.34	20.40 -33.82 14.81 1.38	20.67 -33.27 21.33 8.73	N	KIN SNA OEI TOT	14.11 14.11

Figure 14. (Continued)

107

		Quasi-	Sh	aring	Total
<u>N N</u>		Classical	Penetration	Interference	
i i	KIN SNA OEI TOT	00 00	. EV . OC	.02 .01 00 .05	.02 .03 00 .04
i 1	KIN SNA OEI TOT	. 25 . 25	. C 1 . C 1	.55 -1.29 .03 11 83	.55 -1.21 11 78
ib	KIN SNA OEI TOT	17 17	. 62 . 62	.23 1.3904 13 1.44	.23 1.18 12 1.28
iπ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	.01 .01	. 22 . 22	.00 04 .00 01 04	.00 02 01 03
11	KIN SNA OEI TOT	4.94 4.94	.40 .40	3.80 2424 26 3.07	3.80 4.46 .14 8.40
1 b	KIN SNA OEI TOT	-4.29 -4.29	.92 .90	8.88 .97 -3.09 18 6.58	8.88 -6.41 .72 3.19
1 M	KIN SNA OEI TOT	1.39	• 1 1 • 1 1	.00 85 .29 07 64	.00 .82 .04 .36
ъъ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	-1.16 -1.16	-10.56 -10.56	-28.36 5.31 5.31 .36 -17.87	-28.86 9.47 -10.21 -29.60
ъ П	KIN SNA OEI TOT	-1.65 -1.65	26 26	.68 4415 37 96	.00 -2.25 43 -2.68
ππ	KIN SNA OEI TCT	.65 .65	-5.64 -5.64	-15.19 3.20 3.22 .22 -8.58	-15.19 7.04 -5.42 -13.57
π π	KIN SNA OEI TOT	.30 .32	23 23	.02 1111 25 27	.20 .27 27 .22
N ₂	KIN SNA OEI TOT	-4.15 -4.15	- 19.49 - 19.49	-36.11 6.33 6.83 -2.19 -24.03	-36.11 9.51 -21.67 -43.27
Figur	e 14.	. (Continu	ied)		

_

INTER-ATOMIC CONTRIBUTIONS TO BINDING ENERGY

	_	Promo	tion	- Quasi-	Sha	ring	fotal
		PRH	PRC	Classical	Penetration	Interforence	·
F	KIN NA OEI TOT	-0.42 0.93 1.17 1.68	0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00		6.93 5.78		-0.42 0.73 3.15 8.66
Bond	KIN SNA JEI TOT			0.CO 0.UO	-6.01 -6.01	-18.79 2.09 1.09 -0.53 -11.14	-13.79 8.19 -5.54 -17.14
F2	KIN SNA OEI TOT	-0.04 1.86 2.34 3.36	0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00	0.00 0.00	7.94 7.94	-13.79 4.09 4.09 -0.53 -11.14	-19.63 10.05 9.76 0.13

BINDING ENERGY FARTIFIONING

VALENCE ATOMIC CREITALS

	7	VAC Expansio	on ———		— Cverlap	Integrals —	
<u>Crbital</u>	15	23	2 P or	i	1	<u> </u>	π
i	0.997550	-0.069237	0.009987	-0.000205	-0.001263	0.000653	С
1	0.069879	0.979674	-0.188030	-0.001263	0.064967	0.124880	0
b	0.003235	0.188267	0.982113	0.000653	0.124880	0.225604	0
T		(Unhybridized	3)	С	o	۰.	0.047024

DENSITY CONTRIBUTIONS

	V.	AC Populatio	ns ———		Inter-Atomi:	Bond-Crders	5
<u>Orbital</u>	<u> </u>	V	q	<u>1</u>	<u> </u>	<u>b</u>	<u>π</u>
i	2.000004	-0.000004	2.000000	0.000410	0.002527	- 1.001323	О
l	2.038565	-0.033145	2.005420	0.002527	-0.137860	-0.193669	0
ъ	0.834408	0.160172	0.994580	-0.001323	-0.193669	0.817174	0
π	2.004432	-0.004432	2.000000	0	С	0	-0.094256

EXCHANGE CONTRIBUTIONS TO PAIRPOPULATIONS

	F	Promotio	on Stat	te ——			Sr	naring	Penetrat:	lon ——		
<u>Orbital</u>	<u>i</u>	(Intra-	Atomic) 	i	(Intra- 1	Atomic) <u>π</u>	<u>1</u>	(Inter.	-Atomic) b) <u>m</u>
i	2.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0
1	0.000	2.022	-0.017	0.000	0.000	-0.000	0.015	-0.000	0.000	-0.005	-0.010	0
ъ	0.000	-0.017	1.016	-0.002	0.000	0.015	-0.512	0.002	0.000	-0.010	0.502	0
π	0.000	0.000	-0.002	2,002	0.000	-0.000	0.002	-0.000	0	Ċ	0	-0.002
$\overline{\mathbf{r}}$	0.000	0.000	-0.002	0.000	0.000	-0.000	0.002	-0.000	0	0	С	0

Figure 15. Binding energy decomposition and description of electron distribution for F_2 , SAO approximation

		·····		Pro	omotion-					Sharing
<u>0rb:</u> [tal	<u>15</u>	28	2P~	2Pπ	2P <i>π</i>	Total	Orbi	$\frac{P_0}{tal}$	enetration
15	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.02 -0.03 0.04 0.02	0.07 -0.07 -1.05 -1.05	0.00 0.00 1.10 1.10	0.00 00.0 -0.00 -0.00	0.00 0.00 -0.00 -0.00	0.02 -0.03 0.04 0.02	i	KIN SNA OEI TOT	0.00
28	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.07 -0.07 -1.05 -1.05	-3.37 10.79 -0.58 6.84	0.00 0.00 0.16 0.16	0.00 0.00 -0.77 -0.77	0.00 0.00 -0.77 -0.77	-3.23 10.65 -6.10 1.31	1	KIN SNA OEI TOT	-0.04 -0.04
2Pø [.]	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.00 0.00 1.10 1.10	0.00 0.00 0.16 0.16	2.80 -9.68 1.08 -5.81	0.00 0.00 0.82 0.82	0.00 0.00 0.82 0.82	2.80 -9.68 7.22 0.34	b	KIN SNA OEI TOT	7.07 7.07
2P 1 ;'	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.00 0.00 -0.00 -0.00	0.00 0.00 -0.77 -0.77	0.00 0.00 0.82 0.82	0.00 0.00 0.01 0.01	0.00 0.00 -0.00 -0.00	0.00 0.00 0.01 0.01	זר	KIN SNA OEI TOT	-0.03 -0.03
2P7i'	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.00 0.00 -0.00 -0.00	0.00 0.00 -0.77 -0.77	0.00 0.00 0.82 0.82	0.00 0.00 -0.00 -0.00	0.00 0.00 0.01 0.01	0.00 0.00 0.01 0.01	ਜੋ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	-0.03 -0.03
F	KIN NA OEI TOT						-0.42 0.93 1.17 1.68	F	K1N SNA OEI TOT	6.98 6.98

Figure 15. (Continued)

		Quasi-	Sh	aring —	- Total
<u>H.</u> H.		Classical	Penetration	Interference	
	KIN			. 00	
	SNA	.00		.00 .00	
1 1	OEI		. 20	60	(
	TOT	. 00	22	2.0	•
			•00	• 00	• 1
	KIN			. 20	•
4 7	SNA	00		22 .00	
т т	OEI	-	. 00	26	
	TOT	00	. 20	02	(
	W T 37				
	UTV UTV			.00	• 6
iь	ONA	00		. 61 66	• 6
	OEI		.00	00	(
	TOT	00	.00	. 01	• î
	KTN			00	a
	SNA	28		. 22	6
iπ	OET	• • •	00	- 00	- 4
	TOT	- 00	.00 00	20	•
	101	00	• 00	. 00	
	KIN			1.60	1.0
	SNA	.43		3838	:
τī	OEI		• 04	26	:
	TOT	.43	.04	.73	1.
	77737				
	NIN	E 7		4,29	4.2
lъ	ANG	51		=1.75 =1.25	-3.
	DET	~~	.20	69	• 1
	TOT	57	.20	1.22	• {
	KIN			. 6.6	. 0
	SNA	.26		. 0.2	•••
LΠ	OET	• • •	0.0	- 03	_ (
	TOT	26	- 00	00	-•1
	101	• 20	00	• 07	• •
	KIN			-30.66	-30.6
- h	SNA	.35		8.08 8.08	16.4
0 0	OEI		-6,48	. 68	-6.4
	TOT	.35	-6.48	-14.43	-20.5
	K TN			07	
	CN . VTU	70			• 6
π	SNA	- <u>.</u> 39	6-	.2118	5
	OFT		.00	05	
	TOT	39	.00	22	6
	KIN			- 84	2
	SNA	.33		- 23 - 23	_ 1
ſΠ	OET		.02	- 03	- 4
	019T	3.3	02 00	00	-• K
	101	• • • •	. UC	رد .	• /
	KIN			.00	.0
177	SNA	.11		.00 .00	.1
	OEI		00	00	- 4
	TOT	.11	00	.00	.1
					·
	KIN			-18.79	-18.7
D.	SNA	.00		4.09 4.09	8.1
້ວ	OET		-6.01	53	-6.5
	ncm	.00	-5.21	-11_14	-17 1

-

BINDING ENERGY .	PARTICLING
------------------	------------

			tion	inasi-	Shu	ring	Total
 .'	HIU HA OLI 7 Ye	-0.32 0.83 1.10	0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00		6.S1	1100110101010	-0.32 0.83 7.91
Cond	KIN SNA DEI TOT	1.01	0.50	-0.06 -0.06	-5.96 -5.95	-17.50 3.79 3.79 -0.60 -10.53	-17.50 7.53 -5.59 -16.56
F2	KIN SNA DEI DOT	-0.52 1.66 2.20 3.22	0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00	-0.06 -0.06	7.61. 7.61 <u>.</u>	-17.50 3.79 3.79 -0.60 -10.53	-18.1 ¹ + 9.19 9.23 0.28

VALENCE ATOMIC CREITALS

	·	VAC Expansio	en ———		—— Cverlap	Integrals		
<u>Orbital</u>	<u>15</u>	25	2 P o r	i	1	ьь	π	
i	0.9975-8	-0.06 <u>9430</u>	0.008830	-0.000255	-0.001442	0.000737	0	
1	0.069856	0.979920	-0.186752	-0.001642	0.068368	0.132658	0	
ъ	0.004313	0.186911	0.982367	0.000737	0.132658	0.238521	0	
τ		(Unnybridized	1)	0	0	0	0.051470	

DEASITY CONTRIBUTIONS

	— V.	AC Populatio	ns		Inter-Atomi	Bond-Order:	s ———
Crbital	<u>a</u>	v	q	i	11	b	π
i	2.000105	-0.000005	2.000000	0.000449	0.002886	-0.001500	0
1	2.043240	-0-036943	2.006297	0.002886	-0.145988	-0.203217	0
ъ	0.827731	0.165972	0.993703	-0.001500	-0.203217	0.808866	0
π	2.005312	-0.005312	2.000000	C	C	0	-0.103214

EXCHANGE CONTRIBUTIONS TO PAIRPOPULATIONS

	:	promotio	on Star	:e										
<u>Crbital</u>	<u>i</u>	(Intra- l	Atomic) 	i	Atomic) 	<u>i</u>	(Inter-Atomic) <u>i l b M</u>					
i	2.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0		
1	0.000	2.025	-0.019	0.000	0.000	-0.001	0.017	-0.000	0.000	-0.005	-0.011	0		
ъ	0.000	-0.019	1.018	-0.003	0.000	0.017	-0.514	0.003	0.000	-0.011	0.503	0		
π	0.000	0.000	-0.003	2.003	0.000	-0.000	0.003	0.000	0	0	0	-0.003		
π	0.000	0.000	-0.003	0.000	0.000	+0.000	0.003	0.000	0	0	0	0		

Figure 16. Binding energy decomposition and description of electron distribution for F_2 , BAO approximation

Promotion										Sharing
<u>Orbl</u>	tal	15	28	2B/	<u>2₽π</u>	2P77	Total	<u> 0rb</u> i	tal	Penetration
15	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.01 -0.03 0.04 0.02	0.11 -0.11 -0.99 -0.99	0.00 0.00 1.03 1.03	0.00 0.00 -0.00 -0.00	0.00 0.00 -0.00 -0.00	0.01 -0.03 0.03 0.02	ĩ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	0.00 0.00
25	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.11 -0.11 -0.99 -0.99	-3.11 10.16 -0.57 6.48	0.00 0.00 0.18 0.18	0.00 0.00 -0.73 -0.73	0.00 0.00 -0.73 -0.73	-2.90 9.94 -5.85 1.19	1	KIN SNA OEI TOT	-0.05 -0.05
2R-	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.00 0.00 1.03 1.03	0.00 0.00 0.18 0.18	2.57 -9.08 1.00 -5.51	0.00 0.00 0.78 0.78	0.00 0.00 0.78 0.78	2.57 -9.08 6.93 0.42	Ъ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	6.93 6.93
2P _{if}	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.00 0.00 -0.00 -0.00	0.00 0.00 -0.73 -0.73	0.00 0.00 0.78 0.78	0.00 0.00 -0.00 -0.00	0.00 0.00 -0.00 -0.00	0.00 0.00 -0.01 -0.01	זר	KIN SNA OEI TOT	-0.03 -0.03
2P) 7	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.00 0.00 -0.00 -0.00	0.00 0.00 -0.73 -0.73	0.00 0.00 0.78 0.78	0.00 0.00 -0.00 -0.00	0.00 0.00 -0.00 -0.00	0.00 0.00 -0.01 -0.01	Ť	KIN SNA OEI TOT	-0.03 -0.03
F	KIN NA OEI TOT						-0.32 0.83 1.10 1.61	F	KIN SNA OEI TOT	6.81 6.81

Figure 16. (Continued)

		Quasi-	Sha	Total	
FF		Classical	Penetration	Interference	
1 1	KIN SNA OEI TOT	02 00	• 20 • 02	00. 00. 00. 00 00.	33. 36. 33 33.
i 1	KIN SNA OEI TOT	00 00	00 00	.00 02 00 22	.00 03 00 02
ib	KIN SNA OEI TOT	00 00	.00 .02	.00 .0100 .01 .01	.00 .01 00 .01
iΠ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	00 00	.00 .00	00. 99. 00. 90. 00.	93. 90. 93 93
11	KIN SNA OEI TOT	• 43 • 43	• 04 • 64	1.71 4141 67 .83	1.71 39 63 1.30
lb	KIN SNA OEI TOT	60 60	•21 •21	4.55 -1.82 -1.33 09 1.31	4.55 -3.75 .12 .92
ıπ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	•28 •28	00 00	.00 .02 03 .08	.00 .39 03 .35
ЪЪ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	•34 •34	-6.50 -6.50	-30.26 8.02 8.02 .07 -14.15	-30.26 16.37 -6.43 -20.31
ъπ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	42 42	.00 .80	.00 .0118 05 23	. 20 - 59 - 05 - 65
ππ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	.36 .36	. 03 . 03	.96 2727 63 .39	.96 18 00 .77
ππ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	.12 .12	20 00	.02 .01 .01 .01	. 20 . 13 21 . 13
F2	KIN SNA OEI TOT	06 20	-5.98 -5.98	-17.50 3.79 3.79 60 -10.53	-17.52 7.53 -6.59 -16.96

Figure 16. (Continued)

114

	-	rrom FRH	Ution	Quasi- Classical		aring	fotal
F	KIN NA OEI TUT	-0.30 0.93 1.20 1.73	4.60 -5.32 2.27 0.05		6.63 6.68		4.29 -5.98 13.15 8.46
Bond	KIN SNA OEI TOT			-0.15	-6.03	-17.27 3.67 3.67 -0.60 -10.53	-17.27 7.18 -6.62 -15.71
÷2	NIN SNA CEI TUP	-0.60 1.66 2.40 3.46	9.20 -13.54 4.54 0.10	-0.15 -0.15	7.32 7.32	-17.27 3.67 3.67 -0.60 -10.53	-8.69 -4.78 13.68 0.21

BINDING ENERGY FRAMMING

VALENCE ATCAIC CEFITALS

	·	7AC Expansis	on		Integrals —	al s ———			
<u>Crbital</u>	15	28	2Fe	11	<u> </u>	<u>b</u>	<u> </u>		
i	0.097285	-0.073047	0.009342	-0.000197	-^.001720	0.000790	0		
1	0.073486	0.978926	-0.197584	-0.001720	0.062994	0.135494	0		
ъ	0.004776	0.190753	0.981626	0.000790	0.135494	0.253180	0		
τ		(Unhybridize:	1)	0	0	0	0.049744		

DE.SITY CONTRIBUTIONS

	<u> </u>	AG Populatic	ns	Inter-Atomic Bond-Crders							
<u>Crbital</u>	ą	v	q	<u>i</u>	1	<u>b</u>	π				
i	2,000007	-0.000007	2.000000	0.000395	0.003446	-0.001634	0				
1	2.043164	-0.036483	2.006681	0.003446	-0.135389	-0.206271	0				
ъ	0.818887	0.174431	0.993319	-0.001634	-0.206271	0.799355	0				
π	2.00 ¹ +961	-0.004961	2.000000	0	0	0	-0.099734				

EXCHANGE CONTRIBUTIONS TO PAIRPOPULATIONS

		Promotio	on Stat	te ——	Snaring Penetration								
Crbital	i	(Intra-	Atcmic) b		1	(Intra- 1	Atomic)) π	(Inter-Atomic) i l b T				
i	2.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0,000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0	
1	0.000	2.025	-0.019	0.000	0.000	-0.001	0.017	-0.000	0.000	-0.004	-0.012	0	
ъ	0.000	-0.019	1.017	-0.003	0.000	0.017	-0.513	0.003	0.000	-0.012	0.503	0	
٦٢	0.000	0.000	-0.003	2.002	0.000	-0.000	0.003	-0.000	0	0	0	-0.002	
$\overline{\mathbf{n}}$	0.000	0.000	-0.003	0.000	0.000	-0.000	0.003	-0.000	0	0	0	0	

Figure 17. Binding energy decomposition and description of electron distribution for F_2 , BMAO approximation

	-	PromotionPromotion													Sharing		
Orbj	tal	PRH 1	S PRC	PRH 2	PRC	PRH 2	Par	PRH	PT PRO	PRH	P77 PRO	PRH	Total PRC	TOT	0rb1t	.a]	enetration
13	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.01 -0.03 0.04 0.03	0.14 -0.15 -0.02 -0.02	0.12 -0.13 -1.02 -1.03	0.00 -0.00 0.35 0.35	0.00 0.00 1.07 1.07	0.00 0.00 -0.76 -0.76	0.00 0.00 -0.00 -0.00	0.00 0.00 0.49 0.49	0.00 0.00 -0.00 -0.00	0.00 0.00 0.49 0.49	0.01 -0.03 0.04 0.02	0.14 -0.15 -0.00 -0.01	0.15 -0.17 0.03 0.01	1	KIN SNA OEI TOT	0.00 0.00
25	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.12 -0.13 -1.02 -1.03	0.00 0.00 0.35 0.35	-3.23 10.55 -0.56 6.75	3.15 -4.48 0.08 -1.25	0.00 0.00 0.17 0.17	0.00 0.00 -0.20 -0.20	0.00 0.00 -0.76 -0.76	0.00 0.00 0.29 0.29	0.00 0.00 -0.76 -0.76	0.00 0.00 0.29 0.29	-2.99 10.29 -5.99 1.32	3.15 -4.48 1.47 0.14	0.16 5.81 -4.52 1.45	1	KIN SNA OEI TOT	-0.05 -0.05
2.Po	KIN NA ORI TOT	0.00 0.00 1.07 1.07	0.00 0.00 -0.76 -0.76	0.00 0.00 0.17 0.17	0.00 0.00 -0.20 -0.20	2.67 -9.43 1.08 -5.68	-3.99 7.11 0.01 3.14	0.00 0.00 0.81 0.81	0.00 0.00 -0.19 -0.19	0.00 0.00 0.81 0.81	0.00 0.00 -0.19 -0.19	2.67 -9.43 7.15 0.39	-3.99 7.11 -3.20 -0.07	-1.31 -2.32 3.94 0.31	b	KIN SNA OEI TOT	6•78 6•78
Sb ¹	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.00 0.00 -0.00 -0.00	0.00 0.00 0.49 0.49	0.00 0.00 -0.76 -0.76	0.00 0.00 0.29 0.29	0.00 0.00 0.81 0.81	0.00 0.00 -0.19 -0.19	0.00 0.00 0.01 0.01	2.65 -4.65 0.18 -1.83	0.00 0.00 -0.00 -0.00	0.00 0.00 0.36 0.36	0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00	2.65 -4.65 2.00 -0.00	2.65 -4.65 2.01 -0.00	π	KIN SNA OEI TOT	-0.03 -0.03
2 P 7	KIN NA OEI TOT	0.00 0.00 -0.00 -0.00	0.00 0.00 0.49 0.19	0.00 0.00 -0.76 -0.76	0.00 0.00 0.29 0.29	$0.00 \\ 0.00 \\ 0.81 \\ 0.81$	0.00 0.00 -0.19 -0.19	0.00 0.00 -0.00 -0.00	0.00 0.00 0.36 0.36	0.00 0.00 0.01 0.01	2.65 -4.65 0.18 -1.83	0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00	2.65 -4.65 2.00 -0.00	2.65 -4.65 2.01 -0.00	ਜੋ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	-0.03 -0.03
F	KIN NA OEI TOT										• 6	-0.30 0.83 1.20 1.73	4.60 -6.82 2.27 0.05	4.29 -5.98 3.47 1.78	P	KIN SNA OEI TOT	6.68 6.68

Figure 17. (Continued)

116

		Quasi-			Total
FF		Classical	Penetration	Interference	
ii	KIN SNA OEI TOT	00 00	.00 .72	. 20 . 29	. E Z . E Z E Z . Z C
11	KIN SNA OEI TOT	00 02	. 02 . 82	.61 83 .68 88 82	. بن ا 3. م 4. بن بن 4. بن بن م 4. بن بن م
ib	KIN SNA OEI TOT	00 00	. 22 . 00	.02 .v0 v1 .01 .01	. 86 . 61 . 61 . 61
iπ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	63 00	. 28 . 28	. C.K . F.C K.K . C.K . C.K	. 2 C . 2 C 2 C 2 C
11	KIN SNA OEI TOT	. 46 . 46	.24 .24	1.43 3434 66 .75	1.48 21 63 1.24
lb	KIN SNA OEI TOT	63 63	•22 •22	4.61 -1.79 -1.33 09 1.40	4.61 -3.75 .13 .99
ıπ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	.28 .23	63 88	.22 .28 23 .27	.20 .38 23 .35
ЪЪ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	.33 .33	-6.55 -6.55	-29.83 7.79 7.79 .08 -14.16	-29.33 15.52 -6.47 -22.38
ъπ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	43 43	. 22 . C i	.0119 26 23	.28 61 86 67
ππ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	. 35 . 35	.22 .02	•91 •.2626 03 •37	. 51 17 1 . 74
ππ	KIN SNA OEI TOT	.12 .12	02 02	. 46 . 66 48 . 44 . 44 . 44	. KU . 13 VO . 12
F2	KIN SNA OEI TOP	15 15	-6.03 -6.23	-17.27 3.67 3.07 62 -12,53	-17.27 7.18 -5.62 -15.71

.

INTER-ATOMIC CONTRIBUTIONS TO BINDING ENERGY

Figure 17. (Continued)

.